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INDEPE}.JDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the r\Iembers of Domus Real Estate ptivate Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Domus Real Estate private Limited("the ComP^nY"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at r\,{arch 31, 2125,the Statement of profit andI'oss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statemenrs, including a
summary of signifrcant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations griven to us, theaforesaid Ind AS financial statements glve the information requir-ed by the Companies Act, 2013 (,,theAct') in the manner so required and glve a true and fair view in conformity with th. a..ornting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affarrs of the Company as atN{arch31, 2)25,its loi inclrjirrg
other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in-equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS flnancial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditrng
(SAr, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further.
described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our
report' We are independent of the Company rn accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requilemenrs that are rele'ant ro our audit oi
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have ftrlfilled
our other ethical responsibilitres in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Ind AS financial statemenrs.

Infotmation Othet than the Financial Statements and Auditorrs Report Theteon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other infonnatio.. The o4rer
information comprises the information included in the Arrrrruir.port, but does not include the Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor,s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS hnancial statements does not cover the other information and rve do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other informauon i, -ot.rially inconsiste,t wirh the
finzncial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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If based on the work we have performed' we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this otherinformation, we are required to i"po.t that fact.sTe have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of Management fot the Ind AS Financial Statements

The company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)of the Act withrespect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that glve a true and fair view of thefinancialposition, financial performance including other comprehensive irr1om", cash flows and changes inequity of the company in accordance with the aJcoulfug principles generally accepted in India, includingthe Indian Accounting Standarcls (nd -\s) specified 
-,nder 

s..tior, 133 of the ,\.t read with fth.companies (Indian Accounting Standarag rl"r.r , 20'1,5, as amended]. This responsibrhty also includesmaintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguardingof the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection andapplication of appropriate acco""ting policies;Lrkirg judgrients and estimates that are reasonable andprudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance oi adequate internal financial controls, that wereoperating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness or,rr" accounting records, relevant to thepreparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that glve a true and fair r.ierv a'd are frecfrom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In prepanng the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company,sability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matt^ers related to going concern and usingthe going concern basis of accounting unles, ,i^rrrg.*ent either intends to liquida," ,r."ffi;; ::",:cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.

Auditot's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a wholeare free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor,s report thatincludes our opinion' Reasonable ass.uance is a hrgh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an auditconducted in accordance with SAs will always d.tJct a mateialmisstatement when it exists. N{isstatementscan arise from fraud or error and are considered materialif,individually or in the aggregate, they couldteasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind ASfinancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with sAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professio'alscepticism throughout the audit.'W'e also:

' Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statemenrs, wherher dueto fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain auditevidence that is sufficient and appropriate to piovide a basis fo, oru opinion. The risk of not detectinga matetal misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one reiulting from error, as fraud mayinvolve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internalcontrol.

' obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit proceduresthat are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143e)Q) of the Act, we Ir. ulro responsiblefor expressing our opinion on whetherthe company has ua.q,rui. internal financial controls system inplace and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

' Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accountingestimates and related disclosures made by marragement.

' conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,based on the audit evidence obtained, .Jh.th.r a matettar uncertainty exists related to events orconditions that may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a gorng concern. Ifwe conclude that a mateflaluncertainty exists, we are required to dru- attention in our auditor,s reportto the related disclosures in the financial statelnents or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to mod.i$,our opinion' our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor,s



report' Flowevet' future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a goingconcern.

' Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, includingthe disclosures' and whether the Ind AS f-rrr.irt statement, ,.pr"r.rrt the underlying transactions andevents in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
!7e communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scopeand timing of the audit and sig'ifrcant au"dit findings, including any signifrcant deficiencies in internarcontrol that we identi$, during our audit.
'we 

also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevantethical requirements regarding indep..rd.rr.., and to communicate with them arl rerati'onships and othermatters that may reasonably be thought to bear ofl our rndependence, and where appricable, relatedsafeguards.

Report on Othet Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1'' As required bythe companies (Auditor's Report),trder,2020 (.th. order,), issued by the CentralGovernment of India in terms of sub-se.,ior, 
' 

(11) oi ,..tioi 1,43 of the Ac! we give in the"Annexure A" a statement on the matters rp.arr.a tn parugraphs 3 and 4of the order.2. As required by Secti on 1,43e) of the Act, we report that:

(^) $7e have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of ourknowledge and berief were necessary for the pu{poses of our audit;

@) h our opinion' ProPer books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so faras it appears fiom our examination of those books;

G) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profrt and Loss including the Statement of othercomprehensive Income, the cash Flow statement and statement of Changes in Equity dealt withby this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion' the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accou.trrg Standards

;ffi'::?'rff*Trso;ction 
1'33 or the Act, read with Companies li,iair" A..o,.r,ti.,fitu,au.as) Rures,

(t) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on N{arch 31,,2o2.takenon record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is d.isqualified as on N,Iarch 31,2025from being appointed as a rrirector in terms of section 164 e)of the Act;

(0 with respect-to the adequacy of the internal financial contrors over financial reporting of thecompany with refert"tt io tj'.r. Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness ofsuch controls, refer to our separate Report in ..Annexure 
8,, to this report;

G) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, thecomPany has not paid or provided 
11y 

rnanagerial remun.rrtion-r, defined by the provisions of theSection 1,97 of the Companies Act, 201,3. 
e

(h) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor,s Report in accordance withRule 11 of the companies (Audit and Audito*;-nrr.r,;;;,;;;ended in our opinion and to thebest of our information ,rri ,..ording to the eJphnations glven to us:

i' The company has disclosed 
$Pact of pe.ndlg litrgations in its financial position rn I,d ASFinancial Statements - Refer xote zz tothe financial statements

ii' The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for whichthere.were any material foreseeable iosses;

{\.



1ii' There vere no amounts rvhich were required to be transferred to the Investor Educationand protection Fund by the Company. 
r- ---

iv.

4 The Nfanagement 
fa1 repr.esented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds(which are material eithei individua$ 

"r - irr. aggregate) have been advanced or roanedor invested (either from borrowed funds or sharlpr."-i rr,'* any other sources or kindof funds) by the company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entiry("Intermediaries'), with the understand-g, whether recordedl writing or otherwise, tharthe Intermediary shall, whether, dir..dy-L induectly t.nJ o.-rrest in other persons orentities identified in any manner whatsoever by or o, u"tr"ti or rn. company (..ultimateBenefrciaries') or provide 
^ny goararrt 

", ..."ri,y or the like on behalf of the UltimateBeneficiaries;
b) The N{anagement.h-asrePresented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds(which ate marctial either ,"ai"ii"uuf'o, - th. 

"ggr.gut.; hurr.-b..r, ,...irrld by thecompany from any Person or entiry, including fr"ffg" ;;;ry 1..Fo.rdrng parues,), withthe understanding, whether recorded rn writirig o. Jrn.r*i.'e, thatthe company shall,whether' directly or indirectly, lend or invest - I,n., p..ro.r, or entities identified in anymanner whatsoever by or on behalf of the F":d.TgJ-rray f'urrmate Beneficianes,) orprovide any g,,at?.rttee, security or the like on behalf Jrtn. Ltrirnrr. Beneficiaries;

t) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate rnthe circumstances, 
lothing has come to our ,roti.. that has caused us to believe that the

ffi1'::::iln'#ffi:1,'ffi.9;:j,,u, of Rure rir.j,,'p,ovided underf and @)

v' The compaly has not paid or. declared any divid.end during the year, accordingly theprovision of section 1,23 of the Act are not aiplicabre ,o ,rr. 
-.-o"_prrry.

vi' The company has used a third p^:q operated accounting sofnvare for maintaining itsbooks of accoung based o., .*r-irrra"" of service orgrrirrtio., .orrrrols report (socrePoft)' we noted that the audit trail feature of the saiisofnware was enabled and operatedthroughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, d.rrirrgthe course of our audit, based on the examination of such report, we did not come acrossany instance of audit trail fearure being tampered with. ,\ddiuonalty, based onexamination of SOC report, the auditlrail i, respe.t of such sofrware has been recordedand preserwed in full compliance with th_. r.qoirements of section 12g(5) of thecompanies Act, 201,3,in iespect of the fiorrr.id year ended N.Iarch 31,,2025.Further, inrespect of the financial years ended N{arch 31,2024,in the absence of soc report for theperiod from Aptil 1,2023 to December 31, 20i,we are unable to assess whether theaudit trail has been preserved as per the statutoqy r.qrrir.ments for record retention.

For and on
ARG & Co

of

Chartered A ts

Partner
N{embership No. 086729
ICAI Firm R.gr,. No: 010630N/N500036
Place: Gurugrarn
Date: Ap.il 23,2025
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ttAnnexute A" to the Auditorts Report of even date to the members of Domus ReaI Estate privateLimited' on the Ind AS financial statements for the yeat ended on Match 3r,202s.
Based on the audit procedures performe! for the puqpose of expressing an opinion on the true and, fakview of the Ind AS Frnancial statemenls of th" .o-prny and .o.rsiderirrg the inlormation and explanations

fl',ll,,.ffi}"i:-":ns 
of accounts and other tt.ord^, provided to us during the normal course of audit, we

' ffiffi:J,'"::ffin:;X.TT; I3"' 
and Equipment and rntangibre Assets, according to

^) i' The company has marntained proper records .lol*g full particulars, includingquantitative details and situatio, ofProperty, Plant and Equipment and relevant details ofright_of_use asset.

ii' Since the company does not have any intangible asset, hence the reporting under clause 3(, (r) (B) 
"f the order is not applicable to the com pun;

b) Property' Plant and Equipment- were physically verified by the management during the year.

},'.:::*il?:}[#t""'titn 
and .*plr'rtior,, girr.., to us, ,,t ,r'.,.rirt discrepancies were noriced

r) Based on our examination of relevant records, we report that the title in respect of property, plantand Equipment disclosed in financial ,trt...,.rrts are held in the name of Compa ny atBalance sheetdate.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, company has not revarued any of itsPropety' Plant and Equipmenl @cluding rr*ni:t.:r" 1rr.*f and company does not have anyiotangible assets, hence ieporting under ir^Jr. a 6 (d) of ih. ord., is not applicable to theCompany.

E According to inform ation & explanations and representations given to us by the management, noproceedings has been initiated. or are pending against th. fomp any for holding any benamiproPerry under Benami Transactions (Prohibition) .{ct, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(^) In our opinion and accord'ing to the information & explanation given to us, the inventory hasbeen physical verified by the management at reasonable interval during the year. In our opinion,the procedures of physical verificatiln of Inventories followed by management are reasonabre andadequate in relation to the size of the comparry ,;;;;."1Ii,, borir.rr. No discrepancies of'1,00/o ormore in aggregate for each class of irrrr.rrtory has been noticed.

(b) According to the information & 
lllanation glven to us, the company has not been sanctionedworking capital limits in excess or i s crore, t ,qgr.g, te, atany points of time during the ys21,from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and Lunder clause 3(ri)(b) of the orderis not rpp[.rbl" ' rusut asucls ano nence reportmg

According to the information & explanation grrr:, to us, during the year the company has notprovided any security or guaran-tee or granted any loans or-rdrrurri.s in ihe nature of loans, securedor unsecured to companies, firms u"a t-it.i. uuitiry p-r.*rrrrrps or other parties co'ered.Accordingly' the reporting under clause s f*l (a) to fO "r the order are nor applicable to theCompany.

ii)

lii)

,") There are no loans, tnvestments, guarantees and security m respect of which provision of section185 and 186 of the Companies Act 201,3 arc applicable and
on clause 3(rv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

the requirement to report



v,

9

'Irii)

,r*)

1x)

According to the information & explanation glven to us, company has not accepted any deposit oramounts which are deemed to be deposits. Ii.r.., reporting rrrra., clause 3(v) of the order is notapplicable.

N{aintenance of cost records has not. been specified by the central Government under sub-section(1) of section 148 of the companies A.i, 2otz for the business activities carried out by theCompany' Hence, reporting rrrder clause ("D 
"rthe order is not 

^pfri.uur. to the company.

In respect of statutory dues,

4 According to the records of 
.the company, the company is generally regular in depositingundisputed stahrtory dues including provid"rr,'furrd, .-pioy..r' ,tlt. insurance, income-tax, sales-

^ffi;.m:iT: 
duty of customs, duty of excise, value ua'a.i tax, cess and any other statutory dues

According to the information and explanations give, to us, no undisputed amounts palrable inrespect of income tax, wealth tax, sewice tax, sales tax, customs dray, excise drry, value added taxand cess were outstanding, as at i\{arch zt, iozs for aperiod of more than six months from thedate they became payable.

b) As per the information and explanations grven to us, no dues referred in sub-clause (a) are pendingwhich have been not deposited on 
"..oorr", 

of anydispute.

r Accorditg to the information & explanation glven to us, there were no transactions rerating topreviously unrecorded income that harr. b..rr lrr..ndered or disclosed as income during the yearin the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1,g61).Accordingly, the requirementto report on clause 3(viii) of the order is not applicable to th. .o*pu.ry.

4 According to the information & explanation glven to us, the company has not defaulted in therepayment of loans or in the payment of interest thereon to 
^nylender.

b) According to the information & expllnation glven to us, the company has not been declaredwillful defaulter by any bank o, firran.lial instituti"on or go\rernment authority.

t) According to the information & explanation glven to us, the company has not taken any 1s.,,, 1.^,during the year and there are no outstandin[ term loans at the begrnning of the year and,hence,reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the order is"not appricabre.

d) According to the inforrnation f elnlanation glven to us, on an overall examination of the financialstatements of the company, funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie,not been usedduring the year for long-term pulposes by the Company.

E The comP^ny does not have alt associate, ioint vennrre or subsidiary company. Accordingly,reporting under clause 3(it)G) of ihe Order is ,,ot applicable to the company.

I The company does not have any associate, joint venture or subsidialy company. Accordingly,reporting under crause 3(r*)(0 of the oraer is not appricable to the company.



xl)

x)

"ii)

xi9

xv)

4 According to the information & explanltion glven to us, the company has not raised money byway of initial public offer or further public ;ff* (Td"a-g a"ti irrrt uments). Accordingly, theprovision of clause :(*)(u) of the o.d.ri, not applicable.

b) company has not-mad'e any preferential allotmenq 
9r private placement of share or convertibledebenturet' -t tssldingly, the plovision of clause 3G)1b) or trr. ord., is not applicable.

(') To the best of our knowledge and According to the information & explanation glven to us, nofraud by the company o' uiy fraud on the 6o-prrry has been noticed or reported during theyear.

(b) During fr:- y:", no report under sub-sectio r (12) of section 1,43 ofthe companies Act, 2013has been filed by cost auditors/secretarial auditort, by r^ i, For- ADT-.4 as prescribed underRule 13 of companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 201,4 withthe central Government.

G) According to the information & explanation glven to us, no whistle blower complaints hasbeen received during the year by.ompr.ry.

In our opinion and according to the informatio" 
*..plnation glven to us, the company is not aNidhi comPany' Hence the piovision of clause 3("ii) fri Ol 1.; oiit. order is not appricable to thecompafiy.

According to the information & explanations glven to us, all transactions defined under section188 of the Act are in compliance with section"l88 and details of these transactions are prope,ydisclosed in the Financial strt.r.r..rts. Further, section 1,77 of the Act is not apptcable to theCompany.

'rccording to the information & explanations grven to us, company does not have an internar auditsystem andis notrequired to have aninternal-audit system underprovisions of Section 13g of theAct' Accordingly reporting under clause 3 (*rr) (a) and &) of th. ord., is not applicable to thecomPany.

In our opinion th9 Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors orpersons connected with its directors as referred under provisions of section 192 ofthe companies4ct,2013.

4 In our opinion and according to the information_t.opyirtion given to us, the companyis not required to be registeled under sectjon 45-IA or trr. R.rE*", Bank of India Act,1934' Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(*D (a) of the order is not applicable to thecomPany.

b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financials or Housing Financeactivities' Accordingly, ttteleq"itement to report on clause 36rf1b) is not applicable tothe Company.

-"r)

*i)



c)

xx)

For and on behalf of
ARG & Co
Chartered

Gupta
Partner

Membership No. 089279
ICAI Firm R.grr. No: 010630N/N500036
Place: Gurugram
Date: :rpril 23,2025
UDIN: tsoelzl4 B N FYTTgq,o

The comP^ny is not a Core Investrnent company as defined rn regulations made byReserve Bank of India' Accordrngly, the requo"-.ir, to report in clause :GrD(.) is notapplicable to the Company

d) 
3:-,9::P. 

has only one core Invls,lnen-t 
-company as parr of the Group. Hence, rhe'equrement to report on clause :(xvr)(d) of the ord., i. .roi the applicable to'the .";;r;.

"ii) The Company has incurred cash losses during the financi alyearof Rs.250.15 Lakhs and Rs.3g3.51Lakhs during the immediately preceding finaicial year. 
r '

""iii) There has- been no resignation of the statutory auditors 
?f .,1,. company during the year.Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(*urri) is applicable to the company.

xix) on the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in Note 26 andNote 30 to the financial statements,the ageing and expected dates of realizaton of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,other information accomPanymg the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directorsand matagement plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptionsand considering the company's current liabilities exceeds the current assets by I 2,275.57 lacs, thecompany has obtained tle i.tt., of financial support from the Holdrng company, nothing hascome to our attention, which causes us to believl that com p:y-i, ,ro"t .rp^bl. of meeting its

H#ff:'re;'ff.*;::[1ile 
of balance sheet, as and when tr,.y rrt due withi,,'a period of one year

!7e' further state that this is not afl assurance as to the future viability of the company and ourreporting is based on the facts up to the date of the. audit r.f"r, and we neither give any guaranteenot any assurance that all liabilities falling due within u p.rila of one y.r, f.o,,,'the balance sheetdate, will get discharged by the companyT, 
^rrd 

when they fall due.

,cxi)

According to the information & explanations g1vefl to us, compafly is_not required to make anyexpenditure under corPorate sociai 
l.rpglrriuhiry under provision of section 135 of the Act.Accordingly, the provision of clause :(""i (r) & @j or the order is not applicable to the company.

This clause of the order is applicable to consolidated financial srarements. The audit report underreference is on the standalone finarrcial statements of the compury.-Corrrequently, clause (xxi) ofparagraph of the order is not applicable to the company.



"Annexufe - B, to the Auditorsr Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of theCompanies Act, 2013 (erthe Actrr)

In conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the company as of and for the yearended March 3'l',2025, we have audited the internal fina..cial controls o,.e, firr-an.ial ,eporting of DomusReal Estate Private Limited.

Management's Responsibility for rntemal Financial controls

The Respective Board of Directors- of. the comp afly, 
^te 

responsible for establishing and maintaininginternal financial controls based on the internal control o,rer firlancial reporting criteria established by theCompany considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Auditof Internal Financial controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of chartered Accountants ofIndia (ICAI)' These responsibilities include the design, impiem.ntation and maintenance of adequateinternal financial controls that were operating effectivefi io, *ruriog the orderly and efficient conduct ofits business, including adherence to .ornprrrys policies, the safegurr'airrg of its assets, the prevention anddetection of frauds and errors, the 
^r.ui^ry und .o-pleteness Jf th. accounting records, and the timely

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies f.{ZOt:.
Auditors' Re sponsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal Frnancial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit ir, ,i.oidrnce with the Guidance Note on Audit ofInternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note',) issued by ICAI and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deem.a'to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by theInstitute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that wecomply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls olr., i-r.rcial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequ acy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operatirg effectiveness. our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining a., orrd.."rrrrrdirrg of internal financial controls
over ftnancial reporting-, assessing the risk that a material irreakness exists, aid ,.r,iog and evaluating the
desrgn and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. ThJprocedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, includ.ing the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
ftnarrcial statements, whether due to fraud o*rror.

$7e believe that the audit evidence we har.'e obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system o.r., ft-r.rcial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls over Financial Reporing

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting ,rrd th. ireparatiol of firrrrr.iut statements forexternal Pulposes in accordance with generally-accepied ,..orrr,ing principles. A company,s internal
frnancial control over financiat reportin[ includes those policies ,rri pro..dures that (1) pertain to themaintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and rairty reflect the transactions anddispositions of the assets of the comPany; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the comp afly are being *"rd. oiy io accordance withauthorizations of management and directors of the comp any; ard (3-) provid. ..rrorrrble assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized u.q,riritiorr, use, or disposition of the company,s
assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financiai statements.



Inhetent Limitations of Internal Financial conttols over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including thepossibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to erroror fraud may occur and noi be detect.i. Alro, 
-projectio.rs 

of any evaluation of the internal financialcontrols over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the intern al Fnancial conuolover financial reporting may become-inadeq.rate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree ofcompliance with the poricies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls systemover financial reporring and such internal financial control, orr., financial reporting were operatingeffectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria establishedby the company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note onAudit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

Opinion

For and on behalf of
ARG & Co LLP
Chartered

Partner

N{embership No. 089279
ICAI Firm R.go. No: 010630N/N500036
Placq Gurugram

SST,fliTaTilr,B^rFY r r Beoo

GuptaAi



I. ASSETS

Non-current assets

(a) Prr>pertv, Plant and Etlurpment

(b) Frnancral Assets

(r) ()ther Frnancral Assets

(c) Non current rax assets (l\iet)

Curnent assets

(a) Inr-entones

(b) Frnancral Assets

(i) Trade recervables

(r) Cash and cash equrvalents

(rri) Other bank balances

(r) Other Frnancral Assets

(c) Othet current assets

Domus Real Estate Private Limited
CIN Nr>. L:(x x)g2l)1.2r x 15p'f(;I+ 1528

Regd. ()[frce: lE..f handervalan Listn. Naaz (.rnerna (.omples, \erv I)elhr
Balance Sheet as at March 31,2025

Note No.

8

I
1l)

l1

Particulars

I lrxr55

As at
March 31, 2025

l+i
l.;6

2,519.25

+ ).5f

18.9t t

65.26

2,713.11

(2,26i.36)
(2,266.i6)

3,( )97.(x )

3.{)+

59.65

173.18

1,616.63

2,71i.14

(Amount in lakhs)
As at

March 3t,2024

11.21

7.13

2,il96.o(l

I1.87

39.o7

6i.76

------Jw'68-

(1,237.8r)

(r,236.80)

2,020.(x r

3.tt-+

4i.5,'
119.52

1 ,3 12.35

________226s.68_

3

+

5

6

|.72

Total Assets

II. EQUITY AND LIABILTIES
EQUITY
(a) Equrn' share caprtal

(b) ( )ther equrn'

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
(a) Frnancral Lrabrhtres

(r) Borrorvrngs 1+

(rr) Trade pavables 15

-Total Outstandrng dues of mrcro enterpnses and small elrterpnses
-Total Outstandrng dues of credrtors other than mrcro enterpnses and small eoterpnses

(il) Other financral Labrhtres 16

@) Other current liabtlltres 17

Total Equity and Liabilities

l.(xt1.tlltt2
13

Summan- of Matenal Accountrng Pohcr'

The accompan\1ng notes forms an rntegral part of these frnancral statements

Based on ()ur rep()rt of even date attached.

For and r>n behalf of
ARG & Co. LLP
(lhartered Acc()untarits

(ICAI Frrm Regn No:

lr

Aiay Gupta
Partner

i\Iembershrp No. t){19179

I)lacc: ()trmgr:rm

l)atc: 13.t t-l.lttfj

a

For and on behalf of the board oi tlrrectors of
Domus Real Estate Private Limited

@e$,\h U+
Sandeep Kumar Gupta
l)l\:tti1 1911519

f[)rrccn rr)

Sanieev Shekhar Sharma
DIN:07()9r)52+

([)rrector)

t- qL

x)3('

,4



Domus Real Estate Private Limited
(-l\ \o. 11000821)1.20051r1'(. 1 +0528

Rcgd. ( )ttlce: 1['i-f handewalan [,]xtn. Naaz (.incma (-.mplex, \cu' l)elhi -l 10055
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March Slr20ZS

Total Income

190.39

3.35

in lakhs

3.1-t

I. Income
Iievenue from operations
( )thcr income

II. Expenses
Cost of land, plots, development rights, constructed properties and others
tiinance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses

Total Expenses

III. Loss before tax (I-II)
IV. Tax expense
(-urrent'l'ax

l)cfcrrcd tax

V. Loss after Tax (III-ry)

VI. Other comprehensive income
.\ i)ltems that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

ii)lncome tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

B i)ltems that rvill be reclassitled to profit or loss
ii)l,come tax relating t. items rhat will be reclassified t, pr.fit.r loss

Total comprehensive loss for the year

VI. Earning/(Loss) per share in Rupees (face value of Rs. 10 per share)

Ilasic

l)rlutcd

18

19

20

21

3

22

193.74 3.74

48.83

300.87

873.60

(78.71)

132.85

0.01

332.50

1,223.30 386.65

(1,029.56',) (383.s1)

23

(1,029.56\ (383.s1)

(1,029.56)

(14.10)

(14.10)

(383.s1)

l+

(s.36)

(s.36)

Summan' of \laterial .\ccounting Polio 2

'l'hc tccompanling notes tirrms an integral part of these t-inancial statcmerrts

Based ()n our rep()rt of er,en datc attachcd.

lior and on behalf of
ARG & Co. LLP
(.hartered lcc<luntants

(I(..\l Irirm Rcgm No: 010630N/N500036)

Iior and on bchalf o[ thc board oi dircctors of
Domus Real Estate Private Limited

w
8t) r-()

Ai
I)artncr

\Icmbership No. 0

Sandeep Kumar Gupta
l)l\:0'090519
(l)ire ctor)

Sanieev Shekhar Sharma

l)lN : 0-090-51+

(I)rcctor)

l)lacc: (iurugram

l)atc: 23.0-1.2025

1-

L

Particutars Note No. For the year ended
March 3\m25

I

W



Regd

Domus Real Estate Private Limited
CIN No. U00082DL2005PTC140528

()ff,rce: lEJhandervalan Extn. Naaz Cinema crmplex, Neu,'Delhi -110055
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 3lrZOZ5

A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit bef<rre tax

Profit before tax from conrinuing operations

Adiustment for:
Interest expenscs

Interest Income on fixed deposrts

Depreciation

Operating Profit/(Loss) before working capital changes
Adiustment for:
Movement in working capital
Decrease / Increase in Current Liabilities

Decrease in Invcntories

(Increase)/decrease in other current and non-current assets

@ecrease)/increase in current and non-current trade pavables

(Increase)/Decrease in Current and non current financial asset

Cash flow from/(used in) Operating Activities
Direct taxes paid Qiet of refunds)

Net cash flow from/(used in) Operating Activities

B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received

(Investment)/Redemption of fixed deposit wirh maturin- more rhan 3 m(

Net cash flow from/(used in) Investing Activities

C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds/ (repavment) from short-term borrorvings (net)

Interest paid (Including TDS)

Net cash flow from/(used in) Financing Activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

()pening cash and cash equivalents

Ckrsing cash and cash equrvalents*

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

*Cash and cash equivalents Comprises of the following:
Balance rvith schedulcd banks

- In current acc()unts

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

(This spacc has been intentionallv lefr blank)

(1,029.56)

(1,029.56)

192.35

(3.3s)

(840.s6)

Amount in lakhs

383.51

(383.s 1)

132.84

(3 14)

0.01

3.',t 4

5.74

8.88

11.26

1.61

t2.87

11.26

12.87

12.87

334.28

(453.2s)

0.10

12.08

32.95

27.65

12.81

.t0.52

27.65

+0 52

40.52

(2s3.80)

(80e.20)

1ar. r t)
0.61

(8.78)

(1.s6)

(1,153.87)

(0.77)

(1,154.64)

(e14.40)

(0 33)

<gMa

3.35

0.72

4.07

1,077.00

(138.6e)

1,228.00

0.e8)

938.31 1,157.02

dY|,,D

Particulars For the year ended
Match 31,2025

For the year ended
March 31,2024



Domus Real Estate Private Limited
CIN No. U00082DL2005PTC 140528

Regd. ()ffice: lEJhandewalan Extn. Naaz Cinema Complex, Nerv Delhi -110055
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 3l,Z}Zs

Other disclosures required bv Ind-AS 7:
Changes in Liabilities arising from Financing activities

lst April2024
Proceeds from short-term borrowings (net)

Interest cxpenses (cxcluding interesr accrued)

Interest Paid (excluding TDS)

Balance as on 31st March 2025

2,r39.40

1,077.00

192.35

(r38.6e)

3,270.06

lst April2023
Proceeds from short-term borrowings (net)

Inrerest expenses (excluding interesr accrued)

Interest Paid

Balance as on 3lstMarch2024

849.58

1,229.00

132.73

(70.e1)

2,139.40

(B) Changes in Liabilities arising from Investing activities
( )ther than those disck>sed in Cash florv statemcnt, there is no non-cash movement in investing acti'"rties

The accompanving notes fr>rms an integral part of these financial statements

Based on our report ofeven date attached.

For and on behalfof
ARG & Co. LLP
Chartered Acc()untants

(ICII Firm Reg'n No: /Nsooo36)

For and on bchalf of Board of Directors

Domus Real Estate Pvt. Ltd

1*
Ai

^y
Gupta

Partncr

\lembcrship \o. 0892r9

Place: Gurugram

Date: 23.0.1.2025

W
Sandeeitumar Gupta

DIN :07090519

(Director)

Sanieev Shekhar Sharma

DIN: 07090524

@irector)I v

ffhis space has been intenuonallr-lcft blank)

Non-Current
Borrorrir

Current

EI Non-Curent
trtl i!} PS B,



share l.oo

Domus Real Estate Private Limited
(-lN No. LI00082DI-2005PT(-1.1{)52tt

Regd. ( )ffice: 1l-.. Jhandet'alan Esrn. Naaz (.inema (.omplex, \ct. Delhi -l l()055
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 3l March 2025

A. Equiw share capital

B. Convertible DebenturesH

tn

C. Other equiry*
tn

"Refer Note No. 13

{tompulsorily Convertible Debentures

The (lompanr had issued 71,40,000 0.01",, unsecured Compulsorilv Convertible Debentures (C(-Ds) o[lace r-alue { l0each agtfegaring to { 714lakhs tcr

its existing shareholders on rights issue basis. Each CCDs is compulsoril\'convertible, at the option otCCD Flolders, into one number o[F.quin Shares
in one or more tranches rvithin a period o[ten vear from the date of allotment of the CCDs but flot later than the expin'o[ten vears.

HRetained Earnings
Reprcsents surplus/'deficit in statcment oI Prot-rr lnd [,oss

tn

IN

tn

share 1.00 'l.()0

(.ontertible Debentures :14.00 r I 4.{)l)

Convertible Debentures - l+.()() 714.00

Balance as at April 01,2024 7 r 4.00 (1,951.80) (1,237.80)
Total comprehensive loss o[ the lear (1,029.56) 0,029.56)
Balance as at March 3L,2025 7l{.00 (2,981.36) (2,267.36)

Balance as at April 01,2023 714.00 (1,568.29) (8s,{.29)
Total comprehensive loss of the vear (-3rJ3.51) (383.51)
Balance as at March 312024 7l,t.00 (1,951.80) (1,237.80)

'fhe acc, rmpanving notes ftrrms an integral pan of thesc t-inancial statemcnts

Based txr ()Llr rep()rt ofcven date :rttachcd

lior and on behalfof
ARG & Co. LLP
(-hartcred ;\ccountants

0(.,\t Fi \,,

])artner

\lembership No. ()U9279

Pllcc: ( i urusrlrn
[ )rtc: 23.(l-1.2025

lror nnrl ,,n bchllf r,ithc b,,:rrd oidirect,,rs,ri
Domus Real Estate Private Limited

Sanjeev Shekhar Sharma
l)l\ : {)ll)9o52-l

fl)ircctor)

Particulars Balance as

at April 01,
,aa,

Change ia Eguty
Share Capital

l--i-- -L^ --^--

Balaoce ae at
March 3lrm2i

l.()0

Particu}rrs Belance as
.t April 01,

,t|r1

Change i" Eq,rtf
Share Capital

rlrtri*o rha .-ar

Balancc as et
March 31.2024

Particulars Bdancc as
al April0f,

2424

Changes in
compulsorily
convertiblc

debentures d*ing
the vear

Balrnce as at
March 3\N25

Particulars Balqnce ag

etApril0l,
2fr2i

Ctnnges in
compulsotifu
ooovcftible

dehcntures dudno

Balance as at
Merch 31,frU

Resenec erd surpluc

Retaiosd
Eamingsr*

Eq"ity component
of Compulsoril,v

Conrertible
Debeotures

Particulars Total

Particulars coErponent and Total
of Coopuborily

Convertibh Retained

9"YN
Sandeep Nmar Gupta

I)lN: orU9o5l9

lDirector)t tr

\ 51)01 r-16)



DOMUS REAL ESTATE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U00082DL2005PT C140528
Registeted office: 1-E, Jhandewalan Extension Naaz Cinema Complex New Delhi - 110055.
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March2025

1. Cotporateinformation
Domus Real Estate Private Limited ('the Companv) is engaged primarilv in the business of real estate
development. The opetations of the Company span all aspects of real esate development, ftom the
identification and acquisition of land, to planning, execution, construction and matketing ofprojects. The
Companv is also engaged in the business of leasing and maintenance senices which are related to the
overall development of real estate business. The Companv was incorporated on September 08, 2005.
The tegistered office is situated at 1-E, Jhandewalan Extension Naaz Cinema Complex New Delhi
Central Delhi 110055.

The financial statements fot the leat ended 31 N{arch 2025 rvere authodsed and apptoved by the Boatd
of Directors on for issue on 23.04.2025

2. Matedal accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The standalone Ftnancial statements ('6nancial statements) of the Company have been prepared in accordance
with the Indian Accounting Standards ftereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS) as notified by I\Iinism. of Corporate
Affails ('NICA) undet Section 133 of the Companies Act,2013 ('Act) read rvith the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time and prcsentation requirements of Division II of
Schedule III to the Companies Act,2013 (Ind AS compliant Schedule II!, as applicable to the standalone financial
statements.

The standalone financial statements have been prcpated on a going concem basis in accordance with accounting
principles genetallv accepted in India. Further, the standalone Enancial statemeots have been prepared on historical
cost basis ercept for certain financial assets, financial l.iabil.ities, derivative Frnancial instruments and share based
pa)'ments which ate measured at fair values as explained in relerant accounting policies. The changes in accounting
policies are explained in note 2 (aa).

The standalone Frnancial statements are presented in Rupees and all values are rcunded to the nearest lakh, except
when otherwise indicated.

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

^) Current and non-cuffent classification

The Companl presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-curent classification. An
asset is ffeated as current vhen it is:

. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating gcle.

. Held primarilv for the purpose of trading.

. Expected to be realised.pithin m'elve months after the reporting period, or

. Cash or cash equivalent unless testticted from being exchanged or used to setde a liabiliq' for at least twelye
months after the reporting period.

AII other assets are classified as non-current.

-\ liabilin is currenr when:

Ir is expected to be settled in normal operating c\-cle.

It is held primarih' frrr the purpose oI trading

It is clue to be sertlecl r,,ithin hvelve rn()nths atter thc rep()rrirlu periocl, or
'I'here is tro Lrnc()ttdid(x1al risht to cletcr the scttlemerlt o[ the liabilin' tirr at least nveh-e rnorlrhs ?rfrer rhc
rep()rting periori.

a

a



DOMUS REAL ESTATE PRIVATE LIMITED
C IN : U00082DL2005 PT C140528
Registeted office: L-E, Jhandewalan Extension Naaz Cinema Complex New Delhi - 110055.
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March2025

The Company classifres all other liabilities as non-culrent. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-
ctrrent assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time bet'ween the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents.

b) Property, plant and equipment

Recognitio n and i nitial medvtreme ilt

ProPerft, plant and equipment at their initial recognition are stated at their cost ofacquisition. On transition to Ind
AS, the Company had elected to measure all of its propertv, plant and equipment at the pter.ious GA,{P caming
value (deemed cost). The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost, if capitalization criteria are met and
direcdy attributable cost of bdnging the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Anv trade discount and
rebates are deducted in arriving at ihe purchase price. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's car4-ing amount
or recognised as a sePatate asset, as appropriate, only when it is ptobable that future economic beneFrts associated
with the item will flow to the Compau'. \\hen sgnificant parts ofplant and equipment are required to be replaced
at inten'als, the Company depreciates them separatelr' based on their specific useful lives. Likervise, rvhen a majot
inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carn'ing amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement
if the recogmtion criteria are sausfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of pro6t
or loss as incurred. The Companl identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separatelv,
if the component / part have a cost rvhich is significant to the total cost of the asset and has useful life that is
marerially differenr from that of the remaining asser.

Srbnqtrc tteawrcme (depnciation and asef liuu)
ProPerq, plant and equipment are subsequendy measured at cost net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if anv. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Asset categorv* Estimated useful
life

(in years)

Estimated useful life as per
Schedule II to the Companies

Act,2013
(in years)

Buildings
Plant and machinen
Computers and data processing units

- Servers and nerworks
- Desktops, laptops and other devices

Furnirure and fixrures
Office equipment
\rehicles

20-60
10-15

6

3

5-10
)

8-10

60

15

6

3

10

)
8-10

*In case of assets pertaining to Golf and Club operations, the Companr. based on technical evaluation and
management estimate considers the useful life of the assets as belorv:

Asset category Useful life
in vears)

The
resid
ual

Buildings
Plant and machinen'
Furniture and fixtures

20

10

f

r-alues, useful lires and method of depreciation are rer.ierved'it thg'end of each financial lear and adjusted
prospectivelr. if appropriate.



DOMUS REAL ESTATE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U00082DL2005 PT C140528
Registeted office: 1-E, Jhandewalan Extension Naaz Cinema Complex New Delhi - 1.10055.
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31. March2025

De-rer-ognition

An item of properq, Plant and equipment and anv signifrcant pan initialll. recognised is de-recognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits ate expected from its use or disposal. Anr. gain or loss atising on de-
tecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the cartling amount of
the asset) is included in the statement ofprofit and loss rvhen the asset is de-recognised.

c) Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development

Capital work-in-ptogtess and intangible assets under development represents expenditure incurred in respect of
capital projects/intangible assets under development and are carded at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if
anv. Cost includes land, related acquisition expenses, der-elopment/ construction costs, bonowing costs and other
dLect expenditr.rte.

d) Investmentproperties

Recognitio n and initia/ meaureme ilt

Investment properties are ptoperties held to eam rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Inr.estment properties
are measuted initiallt' at theit cost of acquisition, including transaction costs. On transition to Ind AS, the
Company had elected to measute all of its investment properties at the previous G,I\P carq'ing value (deemed
cost). The cost comprises purchase price, cost of replacing parts, bortowing cost, if capitalization criteria are met
and d ectll attdbutable cost of bringng tle asset to its rvorking condition for the intended use. Any tade discount
and rebates are deducted in arir.ing at the puchase price. \r(hen significant parts of the investrnent propert)'are
required to be replaced at inten-als, the Companl depreciates them separately based on theL specific useful lives.
All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of proFrt and Ioss as incurred.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's caffr'ing amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Compan,r. All other
repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of pro6t and loss as incurred.

Transfers ate made to (or from) inr-estment propertr only when there is a change in use. For a tansfer from
investrnent propert\ to ovner-occupied properq-, the deemed cost for subsequent accoundng is the car,r'ing value
at the date of change in use.

Subteqaent mearurement (depredation and aseful liuet)

Investment properties are subsequentll measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impafument losses, if an\'. Depreciation on invesrment properties is provided on the straight-line method over the
useful lives of the assets as follorvs:

Asset category Estimated useful life
as per Schedule II to
the Companies Act,
2013

(in years)

Estimated
Useful life
(in vears)

Ofhce equipment*

Furnirure and t-rxtures

)
5- 10

5

10

* .\part from all the assets, the Companl has der-eloped commeriiel. space (in addruon ro auromated multi-lerel car
parking) or-er the land parcel receited under the build, own. operale and transfer scheme of rhe public prilate
partnership (as mcntioned in rhe intangible assets policr- bblo*) shich has been depreciated in the proportion in



DOMUS REAL ESTATE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U00082DL2005PTC140528
Registered office: 1-E, Jhandewalan Extension Naaz cinema complex New Delhi - 110055.
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the yeat end ed 3l Marcb 2025

which the actual revenue received during the accounting leat bears to the projected revenue from such assets till
the end of concession period.

The residual values, usefrrl lives and method of depreciation are revievred at the end of each Frnancial rear and
adjusted prospectivelr.

Though the Companr measutes investment propertr using cost based measurement, the fat r.alue of investment
propertl'is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual er.aluation performed by an
accredited extemal independent valuer applring valuation model acceptable intemationally.

De-nngaition

Investment properties are de-recognised either when thev have been disposed of or when they are permanently
vrith&awn from use and no fun:re economic beneFrt is expected ftom their disposal. The difference Letween the
net disposal Proceeds and the carq'ing amount of the asset is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the
period of de-recognition.

e) Intangible assets

Rengaitior a iritial me.tltmnert
Intangible assets acquited separatel,\' are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. On transition to Ind AS, the
Companv had elected to measure all of its intangible assets at the previous G.l-\P carning value (deemed cost).
The cost comprises purchase ptice, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria ate met and directlr.. attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Intemallr generated intangibles, excluding
capitalised detelopment costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in the statement of profit
and loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The Company has acquired exclusive usage rights for 30 years under the build, orvn, operate and transfer scheme
in respect of ptoperties developed as automated multi-level car parking and commercial space and classified them
under the "Intangible Assets - fught under build, owr, operate and transfer arrangement".

S rbxqaenl meaunnent (anlrtiratiott)

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are camied at cost less accumulated amortisarion and accumulated
impairment losses, if anr.

The cost of capitalized software is amortized or.er a pedod of 5 y'ears from the date ofits acquisition.

The cost of usage rights is being amortised over the concession period in the proportion in vhich the actual
revenue received during the accounting rear bears to the proiected rer.enue ftom such intangible assets till the end
of concession period.

De-recognition

Gains or losses arising from derecogmtion of an intangible asset are measured as the diffetence between the net
disposal proceeds and the carn-ing amount of the asset and are recognised in the starement of proFrt and loss when
the asset is derecognised.

0 Investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries (including partnetship firms), ioint ventures and
associates

Investment in equin instruments of subsidiaries. ioint tentures and associates are stared at cosr as per Ind .\S 27
'Separate Financial Statements'. \\trere rhe carn'ing amourit. of an inrbstment is greater than its estimated
recoserable amount, it is assessed tbr recoverabilin and:in.ease of 

. 
piermanent diminution, pror-ision for



DOMUS REAL ESTATE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U00082DI2005PTC140528
Registered office: 1-E, Jhandewalan Extension Naaz cinema complex New Delhi - 110055.
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the yeat ended jl March 2025

impairment is recorded in statement of Proht and Loss. On disposal of investment, the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carn-ing amount is chatged or credited to the Statement of ProFrt and Loss,

g) Businesscombinations

The Company applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations for the businesses which
are not under common conffol. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the considetation
ttansferred measured at acquisition date fait value and the amount of an1' non-controlling interests in the acquiree.
For each business combination, the Company elects rvhether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree at fait value or at the proportionate share of the acquitee's identiFrable net assets. Acquisition-related costs
are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifrable assets acquired and the l.iabilities assumed are recogrused at their acquisition
date fair values. Fot this purpose, the liabilines assumed include contingent liabilities representing present
obligation and they are measured at theit acquisition fair values irespectir.e of the fact that outflow of ieiources
embodring economic benefits is not prcbable. Horvever, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business
combination are measured at the basis indicated belorv:

a) Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit artangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 'Income Tax'and Ind AS 19 'Employee BeneFrts'
respectively.

b) Potential tax effects of temporan differences and carn' forwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition
date or arise as a result of the acquisition are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 12 'Income Tax'.

c) Liabilities ot equiS instruments related to share based par.ment affangements of the acquiree or share - based

PaYments affangements of the Companv entered into to replace share-based pa)'ment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance u.'ith Ind AS 102 'Share-based Parrnents' at the acquisition date.

d) Assets (or disposal groups) that are classifred as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 'Non-cunent
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operadons'are measured in accordance with thar standard.

e) Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual term of the
related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential reneval of the reacquired right.

Anr contingent consideration to be transferred bv the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liabilit! that is a Frnancial instrument and within the scope of Ind
AS 109 'Financial Instruments', is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in statement of
proFrt and loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109 'Financial Instruments', it is
measured in accordance with the aPProPriate Ind AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equiq is not re-
measured at subsequent rcporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for wirhin equiq.

\\hen the Compant acqu es a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriare
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date.
If the business combination is achieved in stages, anl prer-iouslr held equitl interest is re-measured at its
acquisition date fair value and anl resuldng gain or loss is recognised in statement of profit and loss or OCI, as

appropriate.

If the initral accounting for a business combination is incomplete br the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Companv repons provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted through additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to r.fl..t
nerv information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, rvould
have affected the amounts tecognized at that date. These adjustmenh are called as measurement period
adjustments. The measurement pedod does not exceed one r.ear from the acquisition date.
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Butinest nnbination under cvmmot c,ontm/

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control have been accounted for using the
pooling of interest method. The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carning
amounts. No ad,ustments have been made to reflect fair values, or to recognise anr new assets or liabilities.

Prupe$' aqtiitiow and butines rumbiwtions
\\trere properq is acquired, via corporate acquisitions or othenvise, management considers the substance of the
assets and activities of the acquited entiry in determining rvhether the acquisition represents the acquisition of a
business.

\lhere such acquisitions are oot iudged to be an acquisition of a business, thev are not treated as business
combinations. Rathet, the cost to acquire the corporate entitl or assets and liabilities is allocated between tle
identifiable assets and Liabilities (of the entrn) based on their relative fait values at the acquisition date.
,\ccordingly, no goodwill or defered tax arises.

h) Inventories

Land and plots other than arca transferred to constructed properues at the commencement o[ construction are
valued at lower of cost/as re-valued on conversion to stock and net realisable .i.alue. Cost includes land
(including development rights and land under agreement to purchase) acquisition cost, borrowing cost if
inventorisation criteria are met, estimated internal development costs and external development charges and
other directlv attributable costs.

Construction rvork-in-progress of constructed properties other than Special Economic Zone (SEZ) projects
includes the cost of land (including development rights and land under agreements to purchase), internal
development costs, extemal development charges, construction costs, or.erheads, borrorving cost if
inventorisation criteria are met, development/ construction materials, and is r.alued at lower of cost/estimated
cost and net realisable value.

a

a

a

a

a

a

In case of SEZ projects, construction rvork-in-progress o[ constrLrcted properties include internal development
costs, external development charges, construction costs, or.erheads, borrou,ing cost if inventorisation criteria
are met, development/construction materials, and is valued at lorver of cost/estimated cost and net realisable
r.alue.

Development rights represent amount paid under agreement to purchase land/development rights and
borrorving cost incurred bv the Company to acquire irrer.ocable and exclusive licenses/development rights in
the identified land and constructed properties, the acquisition of rvhich is either completed or is ar an advanced
stage. These are valued at lorver of cost and net realisable r.alue.

Construction/development material is valued at lorver of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises of
purchase price and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Stocks for maintenance facilities (including stores and spares) are valued at cost or net realisable value,
rvhicher-er is lorver.

Cost is determined on rveighted-average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinan course of business less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessarv to make the sale.

i) Revenue from contract or services with customer and other streams of revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised rvhen qdntri, bf dre goods or senices are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to rvhiih th. Com;ianl expects to be enritled in exchange for
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those goods or sen'ices. The Companr has generallr concluded that it is the principal in its retenue affangemenrs
because it ttpicallr controls the goods and sen-ices before transferting them to the crrstomers.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue ftom
contacts u.{th customes are prorided in note 2.2(bb).

i. Revenue from Contracts with Customers:

Revenue is measuted at the fair talue of the consideration received/receivable, taking into account contractually
deFrned terms of pa1'ment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the gor'.*-.rrt 

"rrd 
i. net of tebates

and discounts. The Companl' assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting
as principal or agent. The Companr has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangemenm.

Revenue is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the companv and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be meaiured reLiablr.
The Companv has applied 6r'e step model as per Ind AS 115 'Revenue from contracts with customers' to
recognise revenue in the standalone Frnancial statements. The Companv satisEes a performance obligation and
tecognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

a) The customet simultaneously teceives and consurnes the beneFrts provided by the Company's perfomrance as
the Company performs; or
b) The Company's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customef conEols as the asset is created ot
enhanced; or
c) The Company's performance does not ceate an asset rvith an altemati'e use to the Company and the entity has
an enforceable right to pa).rnent for performance completed to date.

For perfotmance obligations where any of the above condidons are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in
time at which the perfotmance obligation is satisFred.

Revenue is recognised either at point of time or over a period of time based on various conditions as included in
the contracts lith customers.

Point of Time:

Rc erue -fmn rual-ertate pfijertJ

Revenue is recognised at the Point in Time w.r.t. sale of real estate units, including land plots, aparknents,
commercial units, dwelopment rights including dwelopment agreements as and when the conuol passes on to the
customef

IrLrcme dl Lort 0J obtdirling clntract

The incremental cost of obtaining a conftact with a customer is recognised as an asset if company expects to
recover those costs subject to other conditions of the standard are met. These costs are charged to statement of
proFrt and loss in accordance witi the transfer of the propern. to the customer.

Over a pedod of time:

Rerenue is recognised over period of time for follorving stream of revenues:

Rrrcrue Jmn Co-deaelopneat ptEatt

Co-development proiects rvhere the Companv is acting as contr*ct6i. itvenue is recognised in accordance rvith the
terms of the co-dereloper agreements. Under such contracts, assets created d6es not have an altemadr.e use for the
compant and the Companr has an enforceable right to pavmerit. Jhe estitnated project cost includes construction
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cost, development and construction material, intemal de\.elopment cost, external development charges, borowing
cost and or-erheads of such project.

The estimates of the saleable area and costs are reviewed periodically and effect of any changes in such estimates is
recognized in the period such changes are detetmined. However, when the total project cost is estimated to exceed
total revenues from the projecq the loss is recognized immediately.

Co a*zttio r an d f t-ou t pmjectr

Consmrction and Frt-out projects where the Companr is acting as conractor, revenue is recognised in accordance
with the terms of the construction agteements. Under such contracts, assets created does not have an altemative
use and the Company has an enforceable right to paiment. The estimated project cost includes construction cosr,
development and construction material and overheads of such project.

The Company uses cost based input method for measuring progress for performance obligation satisfied over
time. Under this method, the Company recognises rer.enue in proportion to the actual project cost incured as
against the total estimated proiect cost. The management rer,'iews and revises its measure of progtess periodically
and are considered as change in estimates and according\', the effect of such changes in estimates is recognised
prospectively in the period in rvhich such changes are determined. Horvercr, when the total ptoject cost is
estimated to exceed total revenues from the project, the loss is recognized immediateh.

As the outcome of the contracts cannot be measured teliably during the ear\ stages of the project, contract
revenue is recognised only to the extent of costs incurred in the statement ofprofit and loss.

Reuenue Jrom golf- tvurse operationt

Income ftom golf course operations, capitation, sponsorship etc. is fixed and recognised as per the management
agreemerit with the parties, as and when Companv sadsFres performance obligation b,v delivering the ptomised
goods or sen'ices as per contractual agteed terms.

Rental and tlaintenance income

Revenue in respect of rental and maintenance sen'ices is recognised on an accrual basis, in accordance with the
terms of the respective contract as and rvhen the Compan'r' satisFres performance obligations br delvedng the
sen'ices as per contracn:al agreed terms.

Other operating income

Income from forfeiture of properties and interest from banks and customers under agteements to sell is accounted
for on an accrual basis ercept in cases where ultimate collection is considered doubtful.

ii. Volume tebates and eady payment rebates

The Companv provides move in rebates,/ eadl pavment rebates/ dovrn pat-ment rebates to the customers. Rebates
are offset against amounts parable bl the customer and revenue to be recognised. To estimate the ratiable
consideration fot the expected futute rebates, the Companr estimates the expected value of rebates that are likeh'
to be incurred in future and recogrises the revenue nei of rebates and recognises the refund liabilin for expectei
firtute rebates.

iii. Contract balances
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Conlrucl u.sxts

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the
Company performs bv transferdng goods or services to a customer before the customer pals consideration or
before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the eamed consideration that is conditional,

Trade recviaabhs

A receivable reptesents the Companr's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e. only the
passage of time is required befote parrnent of the considetation is due). Refer to accounting policies of Frnancial
assets in section 2.2 (u) Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measulement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or sen'ices to a customer for which the Company has

received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration
before the Company ttansfers goods or sen'ices to the customer, a contract liabiliq. is recognised when the
pagnent is made or the pay'ment is due (whicherer is eadier). Contract liabilities arc recognised as revenue rvhen
the Company performs under the contract

i) Cost of revenue

Co$ of rea/ estate projectt

Cost of consructed properties other than SEZ projects, includes cost of land (including cost of development
rights/land under agreements to purchase), estimated intemal derelopment costs, extemal developm.nt 

"hrg..,borowing costs, ot'erheads, constn:ction costs and der.elopmeot/construction materials, which is charged to the
statement of profit and loss based on the reyeflue tecognized as explained in accounting policr. for revenue from
real

estate Proiects above, in consonance with tle concept of matching costs and revenue. Final adjustrnent is made on
completion of the specific project.

Cot of SEZ pnjccts

Cost of constructed properties includes estimated intemal der.elopment costs, extemal derelopment charges,
overheads, borowing cost, construction costs and development,/construction materials, rvhich is chalged to the
statement of profit and loss based on the revenue tecognized as explained in accounting policy for revenue from
real estate SEZ projects above, in consonance with the concept of matching costs and revenue. Final adjustment is
made on completion of the specific project.

Cost of land a plott

Cost of land and plots includes land (including development rights), acquisition cost, estimated inteflal
development costs and extemal development cha4ges, l,'hich is charged to the statement of profit and loss based
on the Percentage of land/plotted atea in respect of rvh.ich revenue is recognised as explaineJ in accounting polict-
for tevenue from 'Sale of land and plots', in consonance with the concept of matching cost and rcl.enui. Final
adjustment is made on completion of the specific proiect.

CNt oJ derelopne nghtr

Cost of development rights includes_ prop<rrtionate development rights mst, borro*.ing costs and other related
cost, s,'hich is charged to statement of profit and loss as explained in accoindng pol.icl for revenue, in consonance
rr'ith the concept of matching cost and revenue.
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k) Borrowing costs

Borowing costs direcdy attributable to the acquisition and/or construction/producdon of an asset that necessarily
takes a.substantial period of time to get readl for its intended use or sale are capitalised as patt of tle cost of the
asset' All-other borrowing costs ale charged to the statement of ptofit and loss as incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of intetest and other costs that the Company incurs in conneition with the borowing of funds. noiowing
cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustrnent to the borroJng costs.

l) Taxes

Cunvnt invme tax

Tax expense tecognized in statement of proht and loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax except
the ones recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equiq.

Curent income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year and is
computed in accordance with relevant tax tegulations. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside
statement of profit and loss is recognized outside statement of proFrt and loss (either in other clmprehensive
income or in equiq). Current tax items ate recognised in correlation to the undedJ'ing transaction either in OCI or
direcdy in equity. IVanagement petiodically evaluates positions taken in the ta* ten:ms with respect to situations in
which applicable tax tegulations ate subject to intelpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

In the sinrations whete one or more units/undertaking in the Company are entitled to a tax holiday under the
Income-tax Acq 1961, no deferred tax (asset or liabiliq) is recognized in respect of temporaq- differinces which
reverse during the tax holiday period, to the extent the concemed entity's gross total income is subject to the
deduction dudng the tax holida,v period. Deferred tax in respect of ternporary. differences which revetse after the
tax holiday period is recognized in the vear in which the temporary. diffirencis originate. However, the Company
restricts recognition of deferred tax assets to the extent it is probable that sufficient future taxable incom. -ill b.
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. For recognition of deferred taxes, the temporan
differences which originate fust are considered to reverse first.

Defemd tox

Deferred tar is provided using the liabiliq method on tempora$ differences between rhe ta-r bases of assets and
liabilities- and their carn'ing amounts for Frnancial reporting purposes at the repodng date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable tempota4. differences, .*i.pt -

' In resPect of taxable temporan' differences associated urith investrnents in subsidiaries, associates and furterests
in ioint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporan differences will not rel'erse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised fot all deductible temporan differences, the carn- fonvard ofunused tax credits
and ant unused tar losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that tnxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temponn differences and the carn- fonvard of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrving amount of deferred tax assets is revien'ed at each teporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufFrcient taxable proFrt *'ill be arailable to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised' Unrecognised deferred tar. assets are re-assessed at each repotting daie and are tecognised to the extent
that it has become probable that futurc ta\able proFlts rvill allow the Jeferred tax asset to be rec-overed.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rares thar are expeited tri apph. in rhe vear rvhen the asset
is realised or dle liabilin- is settled. based on tas rates (and tax larvs) that har.e b.en gno.i.d .r. .ubstanrivel' enacred
ar the teporting date.
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Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside statement of
proFrt and loss (eithet in other comprehensive income or in equiry). Deferred ,rl i. " are tecognised in
correlation to the undedying transaction either in OCI or directl]' in iquit1..

Deferred tax assets and defered tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right erists to set off current tax
assets against curtent tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entitr and the same taxation
authorin-.

Sales tax / value added taxes/ GST paid on acquisition ofassets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets ate recogrised net of the amount of sales tax ,/ value added taxes/Goods and sergices tax
paid, except:

\{hen the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or sen'ices is not recoverable from the taxation authorirl', in
which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense
item, as applicable

\\hen receivables and par-ables are stated with the amounr o[ tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or parzble to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables ot
payables in the balance sheet.

m) Foreign curency transacaions

FmctionaI atd prenttdtiol LyrTelL)

The standalone Frnancial statements ate presented in Indian Rupees ('{) which is also the functional and
presentation curency of the Companv.

Tranmctio ilr dnd balancet

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional curency, b,r applling the exchange rate between the
functional currenq. and the forcign currencr at the date of the transaction.

Foteign curencv monetar;'items outstanding at the balance sheet date are converted to functional curencv using
the closing rate. Non-monetart' items denominated in a foreign currenq- which are carried at historical cost are
repoted using the exchange rate at the date of the transactions.

Exchange differences arising on setdement of monetaq'items, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different
from those at rvhich ther were initialh' recorded, are recognized in the statement of proFrt and loss in the 6ar in
which ther arise.

n) Retirement and other emplovee benefits

Prot,ident F-and

Retfuement beneht in the form of provident fund is a defined bene6t scheme. The Companr makes contribution
to statuto$- ptovident fund trust set up in accotdance u'ith the Emplorees' Pror-ident Funds and Xliscellaneous
Provisions Act, 1952. The Companr has to meet the interest shortfall, ifanr'. Accordinglr, the contribution paid or
parable and the interest shortfall, if anr, is tecognised as an expense in the period in which sen'ices ate rendired br.
the emplolee. If the contribut.ion palable to the scheme for sen'ice received before the balance sheet date exceeds
the contribution alreadl paid, the deFrcit parable to the scheme is recognized as a liabilin' after deducting the
contribution alreadt' paid. If the contribution alreadv paid exceeds the contribution due for sen ices receir-ed bifore
the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as An asset to rhe e.rtenr rhat ihe pre-patment sill learl to, for
example, a reduction in ftrnue pat'ment or a cash refund.

a

a



DOMUS REAL ESTATE PRIVATE LIMITED
C IN: U00082DL2005 PT C140528
Registered office: L-E, Jhandewalan Extension Naaz Cinema Complex New Delhi - 110055.
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 3L March 2025

Cratai4'

Gratuitr is a post-emplol-rnent beneFrt and is in the nanre of a defined benefit plan. The liabiliq' recognised in the
balance sheet in resPect of gratuih' is the present value of the defined bene[rt/obligation at the balanci sheet date,
together with adiustrnents for unrecognised acnmrial gains or losses and past sen'ice costs. The defined
benef,rt/obligation is calculated at or near the balance sheet date bl an independent actuan using the proiected unit
credit method. This is based on srandard rates of inflation, salar;. grol;"th iate and mortalih. D"iscount factors are
determined close to each vear-end bv reference to market rields on govemment bonds that have terms to mauritt
approximating the terms of the related liabilitl. Sen'ice cost and net interest expense on the Company's deFrned
benefit plan is included in statement of profit and loss. Acnrarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of
the liabiliq'are included in other comptehensive income in the period in which thev occur and ate not reclassified
to statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Compensated abtencet

Liabiliq' in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed within one year ftom the
balance sheet date is recognised on the basis of discounted value of estimated amount required to be paid or
estimated value of benefit expected to be availed bv the emplorees. Liabiliq' in respect of compensated absences
becoming due or expected to be availed more than one year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis
of an acn:atial valuation performed by an independent actuary using the ptojected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising ftom past experience and changes in actuarial assumptions ate charged to
statement of profit and loss in the year in which such gains or losses are determined.

Penion

Pension is a post-emplolment benefit and is in the oatue of a defined benefit plan. The )iabilin recognised in the
balance sheet in respect of pension is the present value of the defined beneFrt obligation at the balance sheet date,
together with ad,ustments fot unrecogmsed actuarial gains or losses and past sen'ice costs. The deFrned beneFrt

obligauon is calculated at or near the balance sheet date bv an independent actuan'using the projected unit credit
method. This is based on standard rates of inflation, salaq' gtol,th rate and mortaliw. Discount factors are
determined close to each vear-end bl reference to market y-ields on govemment bonds that have terms to maturiq'
approximating the terms ofthe related habiliq'. Sen'ice cost on the Company's defined benefit plan is included in
employee beneFrts expense. Net interest expense on the net defined benefit liabilin is included in finance costs.
Actuarial gains/losses tesulting from re-measurements of the liabilitg are included in othet comprehensive income
in the period in wluch thel occur and are not reclassihed to statement ofpro[rt and loss in subsequent periods.

S horl-term employee benelitt

Expense in respect of short-term benefits is recognised on the basis of the amount paid or palable for the period
during rvhich sen'ices are rendered bt the emplotee. Contribution made torvatds superannuation fund (funded bl
palments to Life Insurance Corporation of India) is chalged to statement of profit and loss on accrual basis.

o) Share based payments

E,nplo.yee Stock Option Plan

The cost of equin-settled tmnsactions is determined bl the fair value at the date rvhen the grant is made using an
appropriate valuation model. That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based
par-rnent (SBP) resen'es in equin, oser the period in rvhich the performance and/or sen'ice conditions are fulFrlled
in emploree benefits espense. The cumulative espense recognised for equin'-senled transactions at each reporting
date until the vesting date reflects the e\tent to s'hich the ve.sting period his expired and the Companr''s best
estimate of the number of equin insffuments that will ultimatell' vest. The-expense or credit in the statement of
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pro6t and loss for a period represents the movement in cumulative e:,pense rccognised as at the beginning and end
of that period and is recognised in emploree beneFrts expense. Upon exercise of share optioni, the proceeds
receited are allocated to sharc capital up to the par value of the shares issued with an\. excess being recorded as
secutities premium.

Enplolee Shadow Optior Stbene (cuh vttled optiotrt)

Fait value of cash setded options granted to emplorees under the Emplovee's Shadow Option Scheme is
determined on the basis of excess of the avetage matket price, during the month before the reporting date, over
the exercise price of the shadow option. This fair value is expensed over the vesting period with recognition of a
corresponding liabilin'. The liabiliq is re-measured to fair value at each reporting d"t" op to, and iniluding the
settlement date, with changes in fair value recognised in employee benefits expense over the vesring period.

p) Impaitment of non-frnancial assets

At each reporting date, the Compan)' assesses whether there is any indication based on internal/extemal factors,
that an asset may be impaired. If anr such indication esists, the Companv estimates the recoverable amount of the
asset. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating un.it's (CGU) fair value Iess costs
of disposal and its r.alue in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an indir.idual asset, unless the asset does not
genetate cash inflows that are largelr independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. \\hen the
carning amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recovetable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount and the impairment [oss, including impairment on invenrories, is
recognised in the statement ofprofit and loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flouzs are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discouflt rate that reflects curtent market assessments of the time value ofmonev and the risks specific to the asset.
In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated br.
valuation multiples, quoted share pdces for publiclr. traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Companl bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculation. These budgets and
forecast calculations generallt cover a period of five years. Fot longer periods, a loflg term grorvth rate is calculated
and applied to project future cash florvs after the Frfth,vear.

If, at the reporting date there is an indication that a previouslr assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the
recor.erable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount. Impairment losses prer.iously
recognized are accordingll reversed in the statement ofprofit and [oss.

q) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and in hand and short-term deposits with an
original manrrin' of three months or less, r'hich are subject to an insignificant risk ofchanges in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flors, cash and cash equiralents consist of unrestricted cash and short-
term deposits, as defined aborre, net of outstanding bank orerdrafts as ther are considered an integral part of the
Companr's cash management.

r) Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equiw holders

The Companv tecognises a liabilin'to make cash or non-cash distributions to equiq'holders rv'hen the distribution
is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion o[ the Companr'. As per the corporate larvs in India,
a distribution is authorised *-hen it is approved bv the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directh'
in equin'. 'l
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Non-cash distributions are measured at the fait value of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-measuremenr
recognised direcdr in equin.

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, anv difference bet\r-een the caming amount of the liabilin' and the car4ing
amount of the assets distributed is rccognised in the statement ofproFrt and loss.

s) Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Prorisions are recognized onlv rvhen there is a present obligation (egal or constructive), as a result of past events,
and it is probable that an outflov of resources embodling economic bene[rts will be required to settle the
obligation and when a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. Provisions
are discounted to their present values, where the time value of monev is material, usirig a cufl,ent pre-tax rate that
teflects, when apptopriate, the risks speciEc to the liabiliq'. \\hen discounting is used, the inoease in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Vtren the Companv expects some or a,l7 of o, provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a

separate asset, but onlr when the teimbursement is virtually cettain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the statement ofprofit and loss net of any reimbursement.

Onetous contracts

If the Company has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and
measured as a provision. Horvever, before a separate provision for an onerous contract is estabtshed, the
Companv recognises anv impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract.

An onerous conftact is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (i,e., the costs that the Company cannot
avoid because it has the contract) of meeting the obligations undet the contract exceed the economic beneEts
expected to be teceived undet it. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from
the contract, which is the lower of the cost of firlfilling it and anv compensation or penalties arising from failure to
tulfil it.

These estimates are re\riewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates

Conungent liabilin' is drsclosed [or:

Possible obligations which will be confirmed onlv bv future events not rvhollv within the control of the
Compant. or
Present obligations arising flrom past e\.ents rvhere it is not probable that an outflorv of resources will be
required to setde the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed except when realisation of income is virtually certain, related
asset is disclosed.

0 Leases

The Compan)' assesses at contract inception rvhether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
convevs the right to control the use of an identif,red asset for a period o[ time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Compan)'applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of lorv-r-alue assets. The Companv recognises lease liabiliues to make lease pavments and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlving assets.

a

a
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The Companl' recognises dght-of-use assets at the commeflcement date of the tease (i.e., the date the underhing
asset. is available for use). fught-of-use assets are measured at cost) less anr accumulated depreciation anJ
impairment losses and adjusted for ant remeasurement of lease habilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities tecognised, initial dfuect costs incuffed and lease pur-.ni. made at or befote the
commencement date less anY lease incentives rcceived. fught-of-use assets ate depreciated on a straight-line basis
oref the lease term as fo[[oss:

Asset ca Lease term
Land
Buildings
Assets taken on lease for golf operations

28-36 vears

3-16 years

6 t'ears

If ovmership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term ot tle cost reflects the
exercise of a putchase option, depteciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subiect to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in note 2.2 (p) on
impairment of non-financial assets.

I-ease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease patrnents to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include Frxed patments (including in-substance
Frxed parrnents) less anv lease incentives receivable, variable lease payrnents that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts exPected to be paid under tesidual value guarantees. The lease payrnents also include the exercise price of
a purchase option reasonablv certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminaring
the lease, if the lease term reflects the Companl exercising the option to termhate. Vadable lease paynents that do
not depend on an index or a rate ale recognised as expenses in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease pa]'ments, the Companv uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readilr- determinable. Aftet the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced fot

the lease pa\"ments made. In addition, the cam-ing amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease pavments (e.g., chznges to futute payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an
option to purchase the undedying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Companv applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e. those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It
also applies the lease of lorv-value assets recognition exemption to leases of assets that are considered to be low
ralue. Lease Payments on short-term leases and leases of lov ralue Assets are recogmsed as expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Companv as a lessor

Leases in u,hich the Companl does not ttansfer substantialh: all the risks and rewards of onmership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carn'ing amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are reco6;nised as re\ienue in the period in rvhich ther- are eamed. Fit-out rental income is
tecognised in the statement of proFrt and loss on accrual basis.
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Leases are classified as Frnance leases vhen substantial\' all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from tle
Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under Frnance leases are recorded as receivables at the
Company's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate ofretum on the net in'estment outstanding in respect of the leasel

u) Financialinetruments

A financial instrument is anr' conftact that gives rise to a Frnancial asset of one entin- and a Frnancial liabilitl or
equiry instrumenr of another entin.

1) Financial Assets

I nitial recognition and mearurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial rccognition, as subsequenth' measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (OCI) and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Company's business model fot managing them. \\'ith the exception of trade receivables that
do not contain a signiFrcant Fmancing component ot for vhich the Companr has applied the pnctical expedient,
the Company initiallr measures a financial asset at its fair rzlue plus, in the case of a financial asiet not at fait value
thtough profit ot loss, net of transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Companv has applied the practical expedient are measured at the ransaction price
determined r.rnder Ind AS 115 'R.evenue from contacts with customers'. Refer to the accounting policies in section
2.2 (i) 'Revenue from contracts with customers'.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost ot fair value through OCI, it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are 'solelr par-rnents of pnncipal and interest (SPPI)' on the princrpal amount
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Companr"s business model for managing Enancial assets refers to horv it manages its financial assets in order
to generate cash flows. The business model detetmines whether cash florvs rvill tesult from collecting contracnral
cash flows, selling the financial assets or both.

Subtequent mearurement

i' Financial assets carried at amortised cost - a financial asset is measured at amortised cost if both the
following conditions are met

o The asset is held rvithin a business model whose objective is to hold assets fot collecting contractual
cash flons; and

o ConEactual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash florvs that are solelv pa\.ments of
principal and interest (SPP! on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measuremenq such Frnancial assets are subsequenth' measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method.

ii. Investmenis in equity insttuments of subsidiades, ioint ventures and associates - Investrnents in
equitr instruments of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are accounted for at cost in accordance with
Ind AS 27 'Separate Financial Statements'.

iii. Investments in othet equity insEuments - Investments in equin instruments w'hich are held for trading
are classified as at fair value through profit or loss (F\TPL). For all other equin. instruments, the Compani
makes an irrer-ocable choice upon initial recognition, on an instrumenf bv instrumenr basis, to classiftl the
same either as at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYOCi) or fair value through proht or
Ioss (F\TPL). -\mounts presented in other comprehensive income are not- subsequentlr transfirred to
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statement of profit and [oss. Horvever, the Companl tansfers the cumulative gain or loss within equin-.
Dir-idend on such investments are recognised in statement of profit and loss unless the dividend cleariv
represents a recoven' of part of the cost of the investnent.

iv. Investments in mutual funds - Investrnents in mutual funds are measured at fair rzlue through proFrt and
loss (FVTPL).

Derivative instrument - The Compan)-holds derivative f,rnancial insrruments to hedge its foreign currenc\-
exposure for underh'ing external commercial borrowings ('ECB). Derivatir.e financial instruments har.e
been accounted for at FVTPL.

v

Fair value changes on fuistruments measured at FVTPL is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the
Company has elected to measure such instrument at trVOCI. Fair value changes on instrumenh measured at
FVOCI are tecognised in OCL Amounts recognised in OCI are not subsequently reclassifred to the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

D e -re tugni tio n of Ji nan dal ax e tt

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a pan of a Frnancial asset ot part of t group of similar financial assets) is
primadly derecognised (i.e. removed from the Companr's standalone balance sheet) when:

o The rights to receive cash florvs from the asset have expired, or
. The Compan,y has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to

pa) the received cash florvs in full without material delar- to a third part)'under a 'pass-through' arrangement;
and either (a) the Companr. has transfeffed substantialll, all the risks and rewards of the asser, or (b) the
Companl' has neither transferred nor retained substantialll' all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

Continuing invoh'ement that takes the fotm of a guarafltee or.et the transfered asset is measured at the Iorver of
the original carn'ing amount of the asset and the maximum amount of considemtion that the Companr could be
requited to repar.

I npairm e n t o-ff na n dal asy ts

In accordance with Ind AS 109 'Financial Instruments', the Companl applies expected credit loss (ECL) model fot
measurement and recognition of impairment loss for Frnancial asseti.

ECL is the rveighted-average of difference benveen all contractual cash florvs that are due to the Companr- in
accordance with the contract and all the cash florvs that the Companl expects to receive, discounted at the original
effecdve interest rate, rvith the respective risks of default occurdng as the weights. \\hen estimating the cash flows,
the Companr is required to consider -

All contracrual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and extension) over the expected life of the
ASSCtS.

Cash flows from the sale o[ collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contracrual
terms.

(i) Trade re;eiuablet

In respect of uade teceivables, the Compan.r applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109 'Financial
Insruments', rvhich requires measurement of loss allorvance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.
Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected cedit losses that result from all possible default events or.er the
expected life of a financial instrument. '.."

a

a

(ii) Other /rnancial dr'fttr-
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In respect of its othet fioancial assets, the Companv assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has
incteased significandr- since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased signifrcant\ since initial
recognition, the Companv measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else
at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.

\\hen making this assessment, the Companv uses the change in the risk of a default occurring or.er the expected
life of the Frnancial asset. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial asset as at the balance sheet date vith the risk of a default occurring on the Frrancial asset as at the date of
initral recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available u.ithout undue cost or
effort, that is indicative of signiEcant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes that
the credit tisk on a Frnancial asset has not incteased srgnificandl' since initial recognition if the financial asset is
determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

2) Non-derivative financial liabilities

I nitial reclgnitil lt and meotarement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and bortowings and payables, net of dfuectlv attributable transacdon costs.

The Companv's f,rnancial liabilities include ttade and other pa,r'ables, securin deposits, loans and borrowings and
other Frrancial liabilities including bank over&afts and financial guarantee conftacts.

Subrcquenl mearurement

Subsequent to initial recogruuon, the measurement of Frnancial liabilities depends on their classification, as

described below:

Loarc and borowingt

After initial tecognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequendv measured at amortised cost using
the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of proltt and loss w'hen the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated br taking into accounr
anv discount or

premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR The EIR amortisation is included as

Frnance costs in the statement ofprofit and [oss.

F i na n cia / gua ra n te e L'o fi tractt

Financial guarantee contracts are those contrxcts that require a parment to be made to reimbuse the holdet for a
loss it incuts because the specified parn fails to make a pa)-rnent when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contrach are recognized as a Frnancial liabilit_r'at the time the guarantee is issued at
fait value, adiusted for transaction costs that are directll attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequentlr',
the liabiliq' is measured at the higher of the amount of expected loss allowznce determined as per impairment
tequirements of Ind-AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amonization.

D e-recugttitio n oJ-.firundal liabilitiet

A financial liabilin'is de-recognised rvhen the obligation under the liabilitr is discharged or cancelled or expires.
\\hen an esisting Frnancial liabilin'is replaced bl another from the same lender on substantialh' differenr terms, or
the terms of an existing liabilin' are substantiallr modihed, such an exch4nge or modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liabilin and the recognitiou of a nerv liabilin'. The difference in the respective carning
amounts is recognised in the statement of profir and loss.
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3) Reclassification of financial instruments

The Company detemines classification of Frnancial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for Frnancial assets which are equiw instruments and Frlancial liabilities. For
Frnancial assets rvhich are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model
for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are .*p..t.d to be infrequentl The Companv,s senior
management detetmines change in the business model as a result of extemal oi intemal changes which are
significant to the Companl''s opetations. Such changes are evident to extemal parties. A change ii the business
model occurs rvhen the Companv.either begins or ceases to perform an activitl that is signiFrcani to its operat-ions.
Ifthe Companl reclassifies Enancial assets, it applies the reclassiFrcation prospectivelr fro-m the reclassi[rcation date
rvhich is the Frst day of the immediateh' next reporting period following the change in business model. The
Company does not restate anv Previously recognised gains, losses (including impairmenigains or losses) or interest.

4) Offsetting of linancial ins&uments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the riet amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currendl' enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to tealise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneouslv.

v) Fair value meesutement

The Company measures financial instruments such as derivative instruments etc at fair value at each balance sheet
date. Fair value is the pdce that rvould be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabilin in an order\.
trrnsaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value of an asset or a tiabiliry' is
measuted using the assumptions that market participants rvould use vhen pricing the asset or liabiliq', assuming
that matket participants xct in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-Frnancial asset takei
into account a market participant's abilitl to generate economic beneFrts bl using the asset in its highest and best
use ot by selling it to another market patticipant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant obsersable inputs and minimishg the use of
unobsen'able inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Frnancial statements are categorised
within the fair value hieratchy, described as folloss, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

. Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

. Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the low-est level input that is signihcant to the fair value
measurement is direcdl or indirectlv obsenzble.

. Irvel 3 - Valuation techniques for rvhich the lowest lwel input that is significant to the fair r.alue
measurement is unobsen'able.

For assets and liabiLities that are recognised in the standalone financial statements on a recturing basis, the
Companv determines rvhether transfers hare occurred betr-een lerels in the hierarchr. br- ie-assessing
categorisation (based on the lorvest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at thi
end ofeach reporting period.

Extemal valuers are inr.olved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted hnancial assets,
and signiEcant liabilities, such as contingent consideration. Inrolvement of external r-aluers is decided upon
annuallv bl the management. \'aluers are selected based on market knorvledge, reputation, independence and
vhether professional standards are maintained.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures. the Companr has determined classi:s of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liabiLin'and the lerel of the fair talue hietarchl as explained
abote.
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This note summarises accounting policl for fait value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant
notes.

a

a

a

a

a

Disclosures for valuation methods, signifrcant estimates and assumptions (note 4 and 36).

Quantitatir.e disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchv (note 36).

Investment in unquoted equitlr shares (note 68).

Investment properties (note 4).

Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 36 and 37).

w) Optionally convertible redeemable preference shares and compulsorily convertible debentures

i) Optionally convertible redeemable prefetence shares

Optionally convertible redeemable preference shares issued by wholly ovmed subsidiaries are accounted as

investments carried, at cost. In such instruments, only the subsidian' companies har.e the option to buv back and
dividend v,rill be completely disctetionan' at the option of the subsidiaq'. The Companl. will not have any legal ot
contractual tight either in normal or in default scenario to require the subsidiaries to make pa).ment of principal or
intetest as issuer has the right to conyert the instrument into equity shares at any time during its tenure, Amount is
fixed at upftont and conversion rvill be into fr-xed number of shares.

ii) Compulsorily convertible debentures

Compulsorilv conr.etible debentures issued bl gtoup companies are accounted as Equitv investment carded at
Cost based on tlte terms of the contract. These instruments are conr.ertible into Frxed number of equiq shares
within the term stipulated in contract at the option of holder. Amount is fxed at upfront and conversion vrill be
into fixed numbet of shares.

x) Convertibleinstruments

Convertible insmrments are separated into liabihry and equiq' components based on the terms of the contract, On
issuance of the convettible instruments, the fair r.alue of the liabiliE' component is determined using a market rate

for an equivalent non-convetible instrument. This amount is classified as a financial liabdity measured at amortised
cost (net of transaction costs) until it is extinguished on conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included in equity since
contersion option meets Ind AS 32'Financial Instruments Presentation' criteda for Exed to hxed classiFrcation.
Transaction costs are deducted from equi6, net of associated income tax, The carn-ing amount of the conversion
option is not remeasured in subsequent rears.

Transaction costs ate apportioned benveen the liabilin' and equih components of the convertible instruments
based on the allocation of proceeds to the liabilin and equin componeflts rvhen the instruments are irutially
recognised.

For these PurPoses! sale transactions include eschanges of non-Curfenr assets for other non-current assets tvhen
the exchange has commercial substance. The criteria ior held for sale ctassi$cation is regarded met onh'\!hen the

y) Non-curent assets held for sale
The Companr classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carning amounts will be
recovered pdncipally through a sale/ disttibution rather than through continuing use. .\ctions tequired to complete
the sale/ distribution should indicate that it is unlikelv that signi[rcant changes to the sale rvill be made or thai the
decision to sell w-ill be withdraun. Nlanagement must be committed to'the sa.le espected within one rear from the
date of classification. -
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assets or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition, subiect onlv to terms thxt are usual
and customan' for sales/ distribution of such assets (or disposal goups), its sale is highlr- probable; and it w-ill
genuinell be sold, not abandoned. The Companl' treats sale of the asset or disposal group to be highlr. probable
when:

. The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asser (or disposal group),
o An active programme to locate a buver and complete the plan has been initiated,
o The asset (or disposal group) is being activelv marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation ro

its curent fau value,
o The sale is expected to qualifv flor recognition as a completed sale within one vear from the date of

classification, and
. Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikelv that significant changes ro the plan will be

made or that the plan will be withdrarvn.

Non-current assets held fot sale and disposal gtoups are measured at the lowet of their carrling amount and the
fair value less costs to sell. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately in the balance
sheet.

Proper6', plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale to owners are not depreciated
or amortised.

z) Earnings per share

Basic earnings pet share is calculated bt dividing the net proFrt or loss for the period attributable to equitl'
shareholders (after deductrng atttibutable taxes) bl the weighted-ar.erage number of equitv shares outstanding
during the period. The weighted-avemge number of equin- shates outstanding during the period is adjusted fot
events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and rel'erse share split (consolidation of
shates) that have changed the number of equitr shares outstanding, without a correspondhg change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per shate, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equih.
shateholders and the rveighted-arerage number of shares outstanding duting the period are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equitr shares.

aa) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards

The Compan; applied for the fust-time certain stan&rds and amendments, which are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after I April 2024, but do not have a material impact on the standalone Frnancial statements of the
Compan,v.

Ind AS 116: Leases -The NICA notifred the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules,
202.1, which amended Ind lS 116, Leases, rvith respect to Lease Liabilin in a Sale and Leaseback. The amendment
speciEes the requirements that a selledessee uses in measuring the Iease liabilin arising in a sale and leaseback
ftansaction, to ensure the sellerlessee does not recognise anl amount of the gain or loss that relates to the nght of
use it retains. The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after I April 2024 and
must be applied retrospecdvelr to sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application of
Ind AS 116.

These amendments had no material impact on the standalone Frnancial statements of the Companv during the vear
Ind AS 117: Insurance'f17e Nfiiistn of Corporate -\ffairs (IICA) notified the Ind -\S 117, Insurance Contacts, vide
notiFrcation dated 12.\ugust 202.1, under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standads) .\mendment Rules,202-t,
rvhich is effective ftom annual reporting periods beginning on or afrer I -\pnl2024. .

Ind.\S ll7 Insurance Conrracrs is a comprehensir-e nes- acc<.runji.i$Arandatd for insurance contracrs cor.cring
recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Ind ,\S 1117;.e.places lnd,.\S l0.l Insurance Contracts.

:*i '' , ,. ,
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DOMUS REAI ESTATE PRryATE LIMITED
CIN: U00082DI2005PTC140528
Registered offrce: 1-E, Jhandewalan Extension Naaz cinema complex New Delhi - 110055.
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements fot the yeat ended 3l March 2025

Ind AS 117 applies to all gpes of insurance contlacts, legardless of the tlpe of entities that issue tlem as well as to
certain guarantees and frnancial instruments with discretionary participation features; a few scope exceptions will
apply. Ind AS 117 is based on a general model, supplemented bv:

' A specific adaptation for contmcts with direct participation features (the vadable fee approach); and
'A simplifred approach (the premium allocation approach) mainlr. for short-duration conracts.

These amendments had no material impact on the standalone financial statements of the Companl during the 1-eat.

New and amended standerds, not yet effective

There are no standards that are notified and not yet effective as on the date.

bb) Significant management iudgement in applying accounting policies and estimation unceftainty

The preparation of the Company's standalone financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumpdons that affect the reported amounts of re\.enues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
related disclosures and the disclosue of contingent liabilities. Uncertainq. about these assumptions and estimates
could tesult in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in
future periods.

Signifi cant management iudg€ments
The following ate signiEcant management judgements in appl,r.ing the accounting policies of the Company that
har.e the most significant effect on the standalone flnancial statements.

Reeugnition oJ de;ferud tatt o$et: - The e\tent to \F-hich deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment
of the probabiliw of the futue taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be udl.ized.

Eaalaatiott oJ indirators for inpaiment oJ'arictt - The evaluation of applicabilitv of indicators of impairment of assets
requires assessment of several estemal and intemal factors which could result in deterioration of recor.erable
amount of the assets.

Clatifution oJ lcatu -The Companr enters into leasing artangements for r.arious assets. The classification of the
Ieasing arrangement as a finance lease ot opetating lease is based on an assessment of ser.eral factors, including, but
not limited to, transfer of ownetship of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee's option to purchase and estimated
certaint\ of exercise of such option, ptoponion of lease term to the asset's economic ).ife, propottion of present
value of minimum lease patrnents to fair value of leased asset and extent of specialized narure of the leased asset.

Deternirirg the lear lem oJ to rach wilh nneaal ard lermiutio,t 0?ti0 r (Comp^r\v as lessee)- The Company determines
the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together v/ith anr periods covered by an option to extend
the lease if it is reasonablr certain to be exercised, or anr periods cor.ered by an option to teminate the lease, if it is
teasonablr certain not to be exercised- The Company has seteral lease contracts that include ertension and
termination options. The Companr applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonablv cettain whether or not
to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an
economic incentive for it to exercise eithet the renerval or termination. After the commencement date. the
Companr- reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event ot change in circumstances that is within its
control and affects its abilih to exercise or not to e\ercise the option to renew" or to terminate (e.g., construction of
signiFrcant leasehold improvements or signiFrcant customisation to the leased asset).

Inpaiment ofJinun,;ial drretr - it each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates obsersed orer expected
life, the management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding Frrancial assets,
Pmdion^ - .\t each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and Iegal aspects, the
Compant assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding condngent liabil.ities. However, the actual
future outcome mal be different from this judgement. :.-.'- ,:.....
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DOMUS REAI ESTATE PRTVATE LIMITED
CIN: U00082DL2005PTC140528
Registeted office: 1-E, Jhandewalan Extension N aaz cinema complex New Delhi - 110055.
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements fot the yeat end ed 3lMatch 2025

Re terue Jmm cv ratts tpith rto ren- Tlne Companl has applied judgements that signif,rcantlr affect the determination
of the amount and timing of revenue from conftacts rl.ith customerc.

Signilicant estimates

The ker assumptions conceming the future and other kev sources of estimation uncertainfi. at the rcporting date,
that have a signiFrcant risk of causng a material adjusrment to the carn'ing amounts of assets and liabilities, are
descdbed belorv. The Companv based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the standalone
financial statements were ptepared. Existing cicumstances and assumptions about future developments, howeyet,
ma,r- change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are betond the control of thi Companv. Such
changes are teflected in the assumptions when thev occur.

Net reablable ualue o-f invfio11 -Tlte determination of net realisable value of inventory inr.olves estimates based on
,prerailing market conditions, cutrent prices and expected date of commencement and completion of the project,
the estimated f:n:re selling pdce, cost to complete projects and selling cost. The Company also involves siecialist
to perform valuations of inventoties, wherevet rcquired.

Uxfal la* of depreciable/ anortinble arefi - Itlatagement reviews its estimate of the useful liyes of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncetaindes in
these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that mat change the utilitr. of assets.

L'alaatiot of inautnent pnperr' - Investment properq is stated at cost. Horver-er, as pet Ind AS 40 'Invesmrent
Property'there is a requirement to disclose fait value as at the balance sheet date. The Company engaged
independent valuation specialists to determine the fair value of its investment propefi' as at reporting-date. ihe
determination of the fair value of investment propetties requ es the use of estimates such as future cash flows
from the assets (such as lettings, future tevenue streams, capital r-alues of Frxtures and fittings, anl- enyironmental
mattets and the or.erall tepait and condition of the prcpern) and discount rates applicable to those assets. In
addition, development risks (such as construction and letting dsk) are also taken into consideration when
determining the fair value of the propeties under consftuction. These estimates are based on local market
conditions existing at the balance sheet date.

InPdiffTrent lfPnperl plart eq iPnefi,Intertne t pmpertiel and CWP - Impatrment exists when the car4-ing value of an
asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the highet ofits fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived
from the budgets. The recovetable amount is sensitive to the discount mte used for the DCF model as well as the
expected future cash-inflows and the gror*th rate used.

D$ned beneft oblgation (DBO) - Nlanagement's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of unded/ng
assumpdons such as standard rates of inflation, mortalitl', discount rate and anticipation of funue salarr increasesl
Variation in these assumptions mal significandy impact the DBO amount and the annual defined beneFrt expenses.

Fair value measrcme ditclovrct - \lanagement applies valuation techniques (including but not Limited to the use of
illiquidi$ discount on investrnents) to determine the fair value of financial instruments (rvhere active market quotes
are not aYailable). This involves developing estimates and assumptions consisrent with ho.,r'market participanrs
rvould pdce the instrument.

l'alrution of inc ment in tbtidiaies, joint lenttlrr,r drd d$ntiuter - Inresrments in subsidiades, joint ventures and
associates are carried at cost. At each balance sheet date, the management assesses the indicators o[ impairment of
such inrcstments. This requires assessment of several external and intemal factor including capitalisation rate, ker
assumption used in discounted cash florv models (such as reyenue gro\\,th, unit price and disiount rates) or sales
comparison method vrhich mal affect the cam"ing value of inrestments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates.
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Domus Real Estate Privare Limited
(_l\ No. L r x l( rg:l)1.:r r 15p'lI. l+ )5:tt

Rc.qd. ( )ffice: l[:.lhande*'al'n [:xtn. Naaz (-rnerna (-rmples, \eu- l)elhr -1lol55
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March SlZDZi

Particulars

4. Other financial assets (Non-Curr€nt)
.\dr-ances other than caprtal adr-ances

(L'nsecured, consrdered gr rod)

Sccunn'deposrts

llelance rvrth scheduled banks
-Bank deposrts ulrh maturttr mrrre than l2 months

5. Current tax assets (Net)
Income tax pard (Net of l)rovrsrons)

6. Inventories
(lon'er of ost or net rcali.raltle rahu)

Der,elopment and constructron work rn p()gress

7. Trade receivables
Interest accrued on delared pavments from customer:-

J'rade Recen'ables - credrt rmparred (L'nsecured)

Impairment Allowance ( allowance for expected credit loss)
-frade 

Recen'ables - credrt rmparred

Trade Receivables ageing schedule

Balance as at March 2025

Balance as at March 202t

4 srrnrlar lnf()fmatl()n ls gtlen u'here n,r due date r>f pavment rs specrfied ln that cese drsclosure rs fr,tm the date of the transactton.
L'nbrlled dues drsclosed separatelr'";

8. Cash and cash equivalenrs
llalance rvrth Scheduled b:rnks

'ln current xcc()unts
- [n deposrts rvrth ongrnal malrunt\' ,rf less rhrn .i months

9 Other bank balances
Balance rrrth Schedulecl banks
- Benk deposrts trth marunn'mrrre then 3 months Bur less than l1 rnonths

10. Other Financial Assets (Current)
(L nsecured, c,rnsrdererl gxrd)
Securrn l)eposrt

l'rrctl deposrts mentrltr f,rr m,rre ll months
( )thets

ll. Other current assets
(L'nsecure(i, c,rnsrdcred {ood, unless otlrenursc itltcd )

As at
March 31,2025

l+i

1.1(t

7.76

2,519.25

2,549.25

6;.12

(67.12)

(Amount in lakhs)
As at

Match 31,2024

1.+i

12.78

41.23

-+l
7.43

2,09(t.ofi

2,096.00

6: 12

(6i.r2)

tn

in Lakh'

Lr t:

I l.ftt t

12.87

lt.l:

0.72

39.1 r;

Ll5

1.il"

lr r(l
10.52

-l.r x r

ll.9t t

.,. i,.lUr.\. s'i

itrC,'

Particulars

Outstandinp for from due date of payment#
Less than 6

months
6 months -1

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3

vears
Total

O L'ndrsputed'frade recel'ables - consrdered good

(u) L ndrsputed 'I rade Recervables - whrch have srgnrficanr rncrease rn

credrt nsk

(ur) Undrsputed Trade Recesables - credrt rmparred (t,-.12 61 .12
(iv) Drsputed -I 

rade Recel'ables-consrdered good

(l) Drsputed Trade Recervables - u'luch have srgnrficanr rncrease rn credrt
rrsk

(r'r) Drsputed l-radc Rcccn'ables credrr rmparred

Total 67.r2 67.12

Particulars

Outstanding for periods from due date of payment#
Less than 6

months
6 months -l

year
1-2 years 2-3 vears

More than 3

vears
Total

(r) L'ndrsputed'l'rade recervables - cr.rnsrdered glrod

(l) Undrsputed Trade Recen'ables - u'hrch har-e srgnrficanr rncrease rn

credrt nsk

(lf L'ndrsputed Irlde Reces'ables - credrt rmparred 6,- 12 6 i'.1?

0r) Drsputed'l raclq Reccl'ebles -c,rnsrdered guod

(r) Drsputed'fracle Recerlebles - u,hrch har-e srgnrEcarrt rncrease rn credrl
osk

(rl) Drsputed I radq Recen'ables - credrr rmparrcd

Total 67.12 6'7.12

t8.90 39.07



[)ue from othcrs

-(-onsrdcred g:od
(-onsrdered doubtful( Refer Nr;te No. 29)

Deposrt wrth statuton- auth.)fltres uflder pr()test
- (ionsrdered good

Balance wrth rerenue auth()rltres consrdered dnubrful
l.ess: .\llr>rvances frrr doubtful debts( Refer Note No, 29)

3.2(t

ii9.12

63.tx I

11. t+

c9156)

3.16

62.t x t

12.1+

(12.1+)

65.26 65.36

{/



Domus Real Estate Private Limited
(-l \ No. L'r x x rtt2l)l-lr ll )ilrl'(- I + )i28

Rcsd. ()ffice: ll:.Jhandet'alan L:xrn. Na..rz (,rnema (,ompler, Nerr. l)elhr 1lrxr55
Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31zOZs

Particulars

12. EQUTTY
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
(A) Authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital and par value per share

Authorised Capital
ltt,tll to (preu()us reer , lt),1 ltID equrn.shares of { lil each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
I ( ),( ll l( t hrevr()us rcar - l il,l r( I D etlurrr sharcs of { lt r each fullr pard up

(B) Reconciliation of numbers of equiry shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Equity Shares

,\t the begrnnrng ,rf the reirr

Add : (-hange dunng the tear

At the end ofthe year

(C) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares :

Rights, preferences and restrictions ( including restrictions on distributions of
dividends and repayment of capital) attached to the class of shares

The (-ompanv has ,rnlr one class of eclurtv shares havrng a par r-alue r:f {
ll) per share. [:ach holder of equrn.shares rs eflhltled t() ()ne 1.ote per
share. In the event of hclurdatron of the Cr>mpanr., the holders of eclurn.
sharcs *'rll be entrtled t() recerve remiunrng assets of the Companv after
settrng off all LabrLtres. [-he drstnbutu>n rvrll be rn prop()rtron t() the
number ofequrtv shares held br the shareholders.

(D) Shareholding details of the company
Name of the shareholder

DLF Flr:lme Developers l-rmrted (Parent crrmpanv alr.rng \1th rts Nomtnce's)

(E) Details of shareholders holding more than 57o shares (Equity)
Name of the shareholder

DI-F Home Derelopers Lrmrted (Parent (-ompanr)

Shares held at the end of the

13. Other equin

Retained eaming
-Statement of profit and loss

.{,s pet last balance sheet

l-,rss tor thc vcar

.\dd:( )thcr c()rnprchensrr.c lnc()me

Net deficrt rn thc statemcnt,rf profrt;tnd l,,ss

Equity component of compulsorily convertible debentures
.\s per lest b:rllncc shect

l)eletron clunng rhe dunng

As at
March 31,2025

l.(x l

(Amount in lakhs)
As at

March 31,2024

1.t tt t

1.00

l.rl{)

1.00

No. of shares

1.00

l.()ll
1.00

No. of shares

l0,ll{ )l r 10,{)0()

10,000 10,000

Type of shares

[:qurn'

Aggregate number of
shares held

Class of shares

[:qurn'

No of shares held
in the company

l{ t,l ,l )(l

As at
March 31, 2025

(l,e5l8rD
( I,t t39 ;6,;

e,.ntI:i6)

-l-ltttt

-[+.r rI

1r),0()0

Percentage of
shares held

llll)

As at
March 31,2024

(r ,568.2e)

(3n3 5 1)

I,951

:l+.{xr

-l-+.1l(|

, .-,) _-

: n/ 
.!'1,,

'--I 
r,\la, ., -,'

i l'-':- .; :,'- J r '|'

. !ir'.rl,u.' J,''r','::ii'
i.r" \. "' "?'.;,,i
\,- \--/ .ri'(grlsk,

Particulars

March 31, 2025 March 31, 202.1

Number % holding 7o change
during the year

Number 'l,h holding 7o change
during the year

DLF [[ome Der-elopers Lrmrted (l)arent (-ompanv) 10,0( )( ) 1r)0 10,rl{ l( l lil{ )

'l 
otal o[ , rthcr e tlurn' (:,16- i6) ( I ,13;.8{ D



Domus Real Estate Private Limited
('_lN \o. L'( x tt)tt2l)L2tx )5pl c 1+r52tt

Regd. ( )f6ce: 1[: 
.f handervalan Exrn. Naez (-rnema C, rmplex, Ne*. Delhr - I I r )l ]55

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31202s

Particulars

14. Borrowings
L'nsecured Loan from related partres

DI-F Home Derelr>pers Lrmrted, Parent compan\.*

"reparable r>n demand and carrres an rnrerest rate of 8.15,,,, (.\larch 31,202+ -8 75,,,,) as ar balance sheet dare

15. Trade payables
'rotal ()utstandrng dues of mrcro enterp.ses and small enterprises ( Note Nr. 36)

Total ()utstandrng dues ()f credrtors other than mrcro enterDlses and small enterrr.ses^

16, Other financial liabilities
Interest a.ccrued on Borros'urgs

Interest accrued on (,(,D

17. Other curent liabilities
Statutcrn' dues parable

Contract Labrln'
Patable for cost trl completron

(['hrs space has been rntentronallr. left blank)

As at
March 31,2025

3,r r9l.rll r

(Amount in lakhs)
As at

March 31,2024

2,02r).(x r

119.+6

( l.( )(r

ljg.52

(r.( )3

1,296.81

9.51

1,312.35

3,097.00

62.69

3.o-l

1i.5 r'

50.61

Trade Payables ageing schedule

schedule as at March 2025 in lakhs

schedule as at March 31,2024 ln

Particualrs

Outstanding for folloring periods from due date of payment#
Less than I

year l-2 vear 2-3 yeat
More Than 3

vearS Total
NISNIE Not due 3.o-+ 3.r)+
lrlSl\tL-Due

(ru) ()thers +.12 1.58 +1.86 1,-.3 r-

(rr) Drsputed dues-NISNIE

(rJ Drsputed dues-C)thers

# srmrlar rnformatron rs glven *'here no due date of parment rs specrfied rn that case drsclosure rs from the date of the tfansactron.

heen acknrlrvledm,l ht the renrlrtrs Hence the (-omnan' has heen rrnahle to nrocess therr navments and the rlelat rs n.t attrhrrrahlc t. the Comnanv

3.tt'1

59.65

I7i l:
r ).t |6

173.r8

53. r'1

1 ,581.33

11.59

1,6{6.63

Particualrs

Outstanding for follor*.ing periods from due date of payment#
Less than I

year l-2 vear 2-3 veat
lVlore Than 3

vears Total
NIStrl[:-Not due 3.{ )+ 3.tt-1
NISNIE-Due

Others 56.{)l l.)8 l.(|5 5().(tt
(ir') Drsputed dues- \lS\l[:
(v) l)rsputed dues-( )tlrers

ii/iNTS J

/*td/

2,020.00



Domus Real Estate private Limited
CI\ No. U000821)1.2005P'i(. 1 +0528

Regd. ()fFrce: 1f:l-fhandeu'alan l'.xtrr. \aaz (,inema Complex, New Delhi -110055
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 3lzozi

in lakhs

18. Revenue from operations
Revenue from constructcd propertics (Rcfer note no. 25)

19. Other income
Irrtcrest income from:

-Fixed deposits

20. Cost of land, plots, development rights, constructed properties and others
Cost of constructiorr of properties

21. Finance costs
Interest on Borrowings
Interest on (l(lD
Interest on delav in oavment of taxes
Interest others

Bank charses

22. Other expenses
Rates and taxes

.\dvertisement and sales promotion
Repair & Nlaintainance

Constructed properties/ colonies
l,egal and professional
Securin expenses

Payment to Auditor:
- .\udit fee (including GSI)
- ()thers

Compensation paid

.'\llowance ttrr expected credit losses (net)

(This Eace hat beea inteutional$, left blank)

190.39

190.39

3.35 3. l4
3.35 3.14

48.83 (78.71)

48.83 (78.71)

192.35
0.07

132.73
0.07
0.05

107.28
1.17

300.87 132.85

0.02
50.78

2.81

3.27
14.75

18.11

0.02

2.96

4.82

17.13

3.32

0.16

0.91

779.42

3.32

0.14

304.11

873.60 332.50

Particulare For the year ended
March 3rr2fr25

For the year erded
March Slrm%



Domus Real Estate Private Limited
(. 1\ No. 11000821)l-20051v1'(. 1 -+0528

Rcgd. ( )fficc: llrJhandeu,ala. [..xrn. Naaz (,incma (..mplex, Ne,,v Delhi -110055
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 3120zs

23. Current income tax:
(a) 'I'he mafor Components of income tax expenses tirr the vearended \larch 31,2025 and Nlarch 3l,ZO24:
Current income tax on profit f<rr the t'ear
.-\djustment for (-urrent tax of prior vear

ft) Reconciliation of tax exPenses and the accounting profit multiptied bv India's domestic tax rate for Nlarch 31,ZOZS and Nlarch 31,2024

Accounting (loss)/profit before income tax
.'\t crruntrr''s statuton'incomc tax rate of 25.17020 0)revrous year 25.17o/o)

Tax impact of expenses disallowed during the year
'I'ax impact of utilisation of brought frrrward tax krsses

.\djustment for Current tax o[ prior period
Income tax expense

Net Profit/(I-oss) for the vear/ previous vear attributable to equih, shareholders
Total number of equin shares outstanding ar rhe beginning of the vear
Potential equiw shares in compulsorilv convertible debentures
Jbtal number o[ ecluitt' shares outstanding at the end of the rear/previous vear
\W'eighted average of equiw shares outstanding for DEPS
Nominal value of equiw share (Rs.)

Basic earnings per share of Rs. 10/- each

Diluted earnings per share of Rs. 10/- each

([his spare has lxen intentiona$,left blank)

(1,029.56)

(zse.12)

259.12

(383.s1)

(e6.s2)

96.52

24. E.mings per cquity share

Iramings Per Share (F)PS) is determined ba-sed on the net profit anributable to rhe shareholders' of the Parent Compaov. Basic eamings per share
is computed using the weighted average oumber ofshares outsta[ding during the 1'ear. Compulsorilv Convertible Debenturcs debentu.es are
teated as equivalent of equitr share for the purpose of basic earnings per equitr share. Diluted eamings per share is computed using the weighted
aveoge number of common and dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding during the vear including share options, except where the resuh
would be anti-dilutive.

(1,02e.s6)

10,000.00

7,1.+0.000.00

7,150,000.00

7,150,000.00

10.00

(11.40)

(14.40)

(383.s1)

10,000.00

7.1-+0,000.00

7,150,000.00

7,150,000.00

10.00

(s.36)

(5.36)

,', , ! 1

-t' ".!.//i-;ar ,/
1,. Fl-'-."

Particulars For the year€nded
March tlr2,g?,i

For the year ended
March 31,202/

Particulars For the yeer ended
March 3lr?/.&25

Forthe year€ndd
March IL,AUZA



Domus Real Estate Private Limited
CI\ \o. U00082DL2005PTC140528

Regd. Office: 1E f handervalan Extn. \aaz Cinema Complex, Nes, Delhi -110055
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 3l zlzs

25 Revenue Recognition as per IND AS 115

Timine of revenue recognition

Rer.enne recognition at a point of time

Rer-enue recognitioll over period of time

Total revenue from contracts with customers

Movement of contract liability
^\mounts included in contract liabiliues at the begrnning of the r-ear

-\mount received/-\djusted against contrac liabilin' dunng the I'ear

Performance obligations satisfied in current \-ear

Amounts included in conttact liabilities at the end of the year

$ Includes t t25.06 lacs (31 \Iarch 2024 { Nil)

Reconciling the amount of tevenue recognised in the statement of prcfit
and loss with the contracted ptice
Revenue as per Contracted price

Adjustments
Other adjustments

190.39

190.39

Contract balances

Trade receirzbles from contracts under Ind -\S 1 15

Contract -\ssets

Contract Liabrhtres ( refer note 17) 1,581.33 1,,296.81,

1,591.33 1,296.91

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generallv on terms of 30 to

Contract assets are initiallv recognised for revenue earned on account of contracts r.vhere revenue is recognised over the
period of time as receipt of consideration is conditional on successful completion of perfoffnance obligations as per
contract. Once the performance obligation is fulfilled and milestones for invoicing are achieved, contract assets are

Contract liabrliues include amount received from customers as per the installments stipulated in the buver agreement to
delir.er properties once the properties are completed and control is transfered to customers.

Set out below is the amount of revenue from:

L,296.81,

114.91,

(1e0.3e)

2,11,1.69

(820.87)

1,581.33 l,296.gl

212.55

(22.16)

190.39

Particulats For the year ended
March 31rN25 For the year ended

March 3lrZA?/+

Particulars

Particulats

Fot the year ended
Match 31, m25 Fot the year ended

March 3l,2AU

recognised
Particulars For the year erded

Match 31eN% For the year ended
March Xrmld

Fot the year ended
March 31,2025 For the year ended

March 31rN24



Perfomance obligation

-

Information about the Companyts perfotmance obligations for material contracts are summarised below:
The performance obligation of the Companv in case of sale of residential apartments is satisfied once the project is
completed and control is transfered to the customers.

The customer makes the par-ment for contracted price as per the installment stipulated in the Bur-er's agreement

The transaction price allocated of the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied ot partiallr unsatisfied) as at 31st \Iarch '2025 is
t 890.'13 Lakhs (31 \Iarch 2024 I 1,215.22 Lakhs). The same is expected ro be tecongnised u,ithin 1 to 3 vears

(this span has been intentionalll, leJi blank)



26. Ratio Analvsis for the vear ended on l\tarch 31, 2025

Domus Real Esrate Privare Limited
cIN No. U00082Dt2rm5rvrcl.t0528

Regd. O(fice: lE Jhandc*.alan Extn. Naaz Cincma Compl*, No. Dclhi -10055
Notcs to Financial Statemcnrs for the vcar ended lltarch Jl 2025

(Tlit g*x h* har utttrionalj blt bla*1

S.No Particulars Formula As at llarch 31,2025 As at lrlarch Jl,2024 Variation more
than 25 i',t

Reason ofvariation
Amount in Lakhs Ratio Arnount in Lakhs Ratio

I Current Ratio Current Asset 2.103.9i
0.54

2.2t1.02
0.63 -l.l,l0"tCurrent Liabilities .1.979.50 J.502.{8

2 Debt-Equitv Ratio Debt 3,097.00
(r.17) 2,0m.w

(1.63) -16.31"6 Due to increase io
Equin (2.2(rlt.Yr\ il.236.80)

l Debt Sen'ice Coveragc Ratio Net Operating Income (728.69)
(5.25) tau.65)

(3.53) 48.79,' ,
Due to decreese in

rerenueDebt Sen'ice 138.69 70.98

I on Equin Ratio Net Income
15.t3" .16.50, .

Sharcholders
Due to decrease in

rerenue

, Inrentory turnovcr ratio COGS {8.83 2.lf n
(?8.71)

(0.01) -158.7y,i Due to changc in
inrentoN costArcrage lnrentory 23n.63 2,201.01

6 Trade receivablcs turnover raiio Net Salcs
NA NA

NAAverage Receirables

'l Trade pavables turnorer ratio Net Purchase
NA NA

NAAteragc Pavables

t Net capital turnover ratio Sales or COGS 190.J9 (0.08) 0.00, Due ro decrease in
revenueNet Asse6 (Ln5.57\ (r,288.16)

9 Net profit ratio Net Profit (1,029.s6)
-'t40.76rt -383.51

o.mq,, 0.000t Due to decrease in
relenueSales lm.19

t0 Return on Capital emploved
Net Profit o2E.69) 32.15,ii,

-250.(r(r m.n", 58.64"i, Due to decrease in
Capiral Emploved (22dr6.Y,\ (1,2J6.80)

ll Return on investment Net relurn on intestmenl NA NA NA
Cost of Investment

LH \

NA



DOMUS REAL ESTATE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U00082DL2005PTC 1 40528

Regd. Office: lEJhandervalan E,xtn. Naaz Cinema Complex, Nerv Delhi -110055
Notes to Financial Statements for the yeat ended March 31, 2025

27 .F inancial Instruments

(i) Fair values hierarchy

Financial assets are measured at fau value in the financial statement and are grouped into
three level of far value hierarchv. The three levels are defined based on the obsen'abili6,
of signifrcant input to the measurement as follorvs:

(ii)

Level t Quoted pnce (unadjusted) in active market for the financial instrument

Level 2: input other than quoted prices included rvithin level 1 that are obsen able for the
assets or liabilities, either direcdy or indirecdv

Level3: Unobsen-able inputs for the assers or liabilities

Fair assets measured at fair value-recurring fau value measurements- Nil

Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost:(,")
in Lakhs

Financial Assets

Other financial assets

Q.ion-Cuffent)

Level 3 1.15 1,.45 11.23 14.23

Trade Receivables Level 3

cashCash &
equir.alents

Level 3 40.52 40.52 12.87 12.87

Other bank balances Level 3 0.12
Other financial assets

(Current)
Ler-el 3 48.90 48.90 39.07 39.07

Total 90.87 90.87 96.89 96.89
Financial Liabilities
Borrorvings
(Including interest)

Ler-el 3 3270.t2 3270.12 2139.46 2139.4(t

T'rade palables Level 3 62.69 62.69 50.(r1 50.61
Interest accrued on
CCD

Ler-el 3 0.06 0.06 0.06 0.06

Total 3332.87 3332.87 2190.13 2t90.13

I H\-/

Particulat Level Match 31,20?s March 31,2A24
Carrying
Value

Fait Value Carqpiqg
Yalue

Carrying
Yalue

0.72



DOMUS REAL ESTATE PRTVATE LIMITED
CIN : U00082DL2005PTC1 10528

Regd. Office: 1E Jhandervalan Extn. Naaz Cinema Complex, Nerv Delhi -110055
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended Match 3L, 2025

(ir) Financial Instruments by category

The carn'ing value and fau value of f,rnancial instrument bv categodes as follorvs:
in Lakhs

(.) Financial Risk Management

The Companv's activities expose it to market r{sk, liquidiw risk and credit risk. The
Compau"s Board of Directors has overall responsibiliq. for the establishment and oversight
of the Companv's risk management framervork. This note explains the sources of risk rvhich
the entitt'is exposed to and horv the entiw manages the risk and the related impact in the
financial statements.

A) Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to a risk that the countelparfi- rvill default on its contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to the compan\'. Credit risk arises on liquid assets, non-current
financial assets, derir-atir-e assets, trade and other receivables. The compan)- does not har-e
anv derivative assets and in resPect of cash and cash equivalents, the said amount is in
curreflt account rvith Scheduled Bank rvhere chances of default are minimum. The

Financial
Assets
Other financial
aSSetS

Q.don-Current)

Level
t
-) 1.45

41.23

Trade
Receir.ables

Level
a
J

Cash & cash

equivalents
Ler-el

a
J

40.s2 12.87

bankOther
balances

Lerel
3

0.72

(Current)

financialOther
aSSetS

Level
J

48.90 39.07

Total 90.87 96.89
Financial
Liabilities
Borrorvings Level

3

3270.12 21,39.46

Trade pavables Ler.el
3

62.69 50.61

Interest accrued
on CCD

Level
aJ

0.06 0.06

Total 3332.87 2190.13

'7

Match 31,2025 March 31,2024Patticularc LeveI
F\TTPL F\,'OCI Amortised

cost
FV]I"PL FVOCI Amortised

cost



DOMUS REAL ESTATE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U00082DL2005PT Cl 10528

Regd. Office: ltrJhandewalan Extn. Naaz Cinema Complex, Ner.v Delhi -110055
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31r 2025

maximum exposure to the credit risk is equal to the carning amount of the company's other
ftnancial Assets.

a) Credit risk management

,) Credit risk rating

The Compan)' assesses and manages credit risk of financial assets based on following
categories arrived on the basis of assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class
of financial assets.

A: Low credit risk
B: Nloderate credit risk
C: High credit risk

The Compan)'provides for expected credit loss based on the follo'uving:

Life ume expected credit loss is provided for trade receir.ables.

Based on business enrtonment in rvhich the Compan)- operates, a default on a financial
asset is considered rvhen the counteqparfi fails to make payments rvithin the agreed trme
period as Per contract. Loss rates reflecting defaults are based on actual credit loss
experience and considering differences benveen current and historical economic
conditions.
Assets are rvritten off rvhen there is no reasonable expectation of recoven, such as a

debtor declaring bankruptcy or a litigation decided against the Compan),. The Compan)'
continues to engage rvith parties rvhose balances are rvrttten off and attempts to enforce
repayment. Recbr-eries made are recognised in statement of profit and loss account.

in Lakhs

Low credit risk Cash and cash equir.alents, other bank
balances, inr-estments, loans, trade
receivables and other financial assets

12 month expected credit
loss/life time expected credit
loss

Nloderate credit
risk

Trade receir.ables, loans and other
financial assets

1,2 month expected credit
loss/life time expected credit
loss

creditHigh
risk

Trade receivables, loans and other
financial assets

12 month expected credit
loss/life time expected credit
loss/fullv provided for

A : Lorv credit risk Cash and cash

equir-alents, other bank
balances, investments,
loans, and other financial
ASSCTS

90.87 96.89

C: High credit risk Trade Receivables 67 .12 67.12

t{{Pec1

Credit Rating Particulam 3I Match?fizi 31 Match}A2l.



DOMUS REAL ESTATE PRIVATE LIMITED
C IN : U00082DL2005PT Cl 10528

Regd. Office: lE Jhandervalan Extn. Naaz Cinema Complex, Nerv Delhi -110055
Notes to Financial Statements fot the year ended March 31r 2025

b) Ctedit risk exposure

Provision for expected credit losses

The Companv provides for expected credit loss based on 1,2 months and lifetime
expected credit loss basis for following financial assets:

31 March 2025 t in Lakhs

31 Match 2024 t in Lakhs

B) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidin risk management rmplies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities and the availabiliq' of funding through an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities to meet obligations rvhen due.

Nlanagement monitors rolling forecasts of the Companr-'s liquidity position and cash
and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash florvs. The Compan)' takes into
account the liquiditv of the market in rvhich the entin- operates.

Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables belorv analvse the Companr-'s financial liabilities into relevant maturiq-
groupmgs
based on their contractual marurities

Cash and cash

other bank
inr.estments, loans,
financial assets

equivalents,
balances,

and other

90.87 90.87

Trade receivables 67.12 6t .12

Cash and cash equivalents, other
bank balances, investments,
loans, and other f,tnancial assets

96.89 96.89

Trade receir-ables 67.1,2 67 .12

,-Ai

rmparflneil
provision :

Carqying r

net of Im1
ptovision

nouilt
ilflfileOt



DOMUS REAL ESTATE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U00082DL2005P1'C 1 40528

Regd. Off,rce: 1tr Jhandervalan Extn. Naaz Cinema Complex, Nerv Delhi -110055
Notes to Financial Statements fot the year ended Match 31r 2025

in Lakhs

C) Market Risk

Interest rate risk
i) Liabilities

The Companv's fixed rate borrorvings ftom related parties 
^re 

carrred at amortised cost.
Thev are therefore not subiect to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since
neithet the carn ing amount nor the future cash flows r.vill flucruate because of a change
in market interest rates.

ii) Assets

The compan\"s fixed deposits ate c ttted at fixed rate. Therefore, not subject to interest
rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash
florvs rvill flucruate because of a change in market interest rates.

vi) Capital Management

The Compan)' manages its capital to ensure that the Compan)'rvill be able to continue as going
concern rvhile maximizing the return to stakeholders through optimisation of debt and equiE

balance. The capital stmcrure of the Compan)' consists of net debt and total equrn of the

Companv. The Companv is not subiect to any externallr-imposed capital requrements.

28.Related Party Disclosure

Information required to be disclosed under IND AS 24 on "Related Parn'Disclosures".

di

Borrorvings
(Including
interest)

327 0.12 3270.12

Trade pavable 62.69 62.69
Interest accrued
on CCD

0.06 0.06

Borrorvings
(Including
interest)

2139.46 2139.46

Trade pavable 50.61 50.61

Interest accrued
on CCD

0.06 0.06

I More than

[ 5 yeats
I

Total31Marcll2025 Less than l yeal

Less thaa l yearI I More than

| 5 yearc



DOMUS REAL ESTATE PRIVATE LIMITED
C IN : U00082DL2005PT C1, 10528

Regd. Office: 1E Jhandervalan Extn. Naaz Cinema Complex, Nerv Delhi -110055
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31r 2025

A) Relationship

a) Ultimate Parent company
Raidhani Investments and Agencies Private Limited

b) Intermediate Parent company
DLF Lrmrted parent compan\- of DLF Home Developers Limited)

c) Parent company
DLF Home Developers Limited

d) Fellow Subsidiary Company with whom transactions have been carried our dur the
yeaf
DLF Luxun Homes Lrmrted

B) Details of transactions with the related patty/parties during the year in the otdinary
course of business.

t in Lakhs

C) Balance at the end of year
t in Lakhs

29. The Companv was earlier operating under a revenue-sharing der-elopment agreement u,ith
the landowner, rvherein customer collections were routed through an escrow account rvith
ICICI Bank and apportioned benveen the parties. Effecdve 5th Nlorch 2025, this

. .- 
-i rl -,.,

Ttansaction during the year
Loan taken

Loan taken
Interest on borrowings

Interest on borrowings

Interest on CCD
Adr.ertisement & Publicin'

DLF Home Der.elopers Limited
DLF Luxun Homes Limited
DLF Luxun- Homes Limited
DLF Home Developers Limited

DLF Home Developers Limited
DLF Lrmrted

517.00

s00.00

101.71

90.64

0.07

50.78

93.00

1,135.00

62.03

70.7 0

0.07

Eq"iq,'share capital

CCD

Borrorvings

Borrorvings

Interest pal able on borrorvings

Interest pavable on borrorvings
Interest pavable on CCD
Adr.ertis ement expens es

DLF Home Der.elopers Limited
DLF Home Developers Limited
DLF Home Developers Limited

DLF Luxun' Homes Lrmrted

DLF Luxufl- Homes Lrmrted

DLF Home Developers Limited
DLF Home Derelopers Limited
DLF Lrmrted

1.00

714.00

1,162.00

1,635.00

91,.54

81.58

0.06
45.89

1.00

714.00

1,135.00

885.00

63.57

55.82

0.13

Description Name of the entity
Match 25

Amount
M:arch24
Amount

Description Name of the entity
Match 25

Amount
]il,f,arch24

Amount



DOMUS REAL ESTATE PRIVATE LIMITED
C IN: L'00082DL2005PTC1 40528

Regd. Office: 1E Jhandervalan Extn. Naaz Cinema Complex, Nerv Delhi -110055
Notes to Financial Statements for the yer ended March 31r 2025

aruangement was terminated, and the Compan), acquired 1009/0 rights in respect of the
remaining 7 unsold villas (OC pend.g) for a consideration of {10 crores, rvhich has been
accounted for under Ind AS 1 15 and added to the cost of invenron'. Further, based on the
final setdement rvith the landorvner , ^ recoverable of 77.79 crores relating to past
customer setdements is now considered doubtful, and a provision for the same has been
recognised. The Nlanagement continues to belier.e that sen'ice tax/GST is not applicable
on the Company's operations under the ersrrvhile arrangement.

30. The net worth of the Companv as at Nlarch 31,, 2025 has been completell, eroded.
Horvever, DLF Limited, the Intermediate Parent companv has assured continued financial
support for the future operations of the Companr-. Based on this, the financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

31. No provision for tax for the year has been made in the accounts as there is no taxable
income under the pror.isions of the Income-Tax Act 1961. The Companv follorvs notified
IND AS 12 - lncome Taxes, as per section 1 33 of Companies Act, 2013 read rvith rules
made thereunder. The Companv has incurred losses in the current and also has carry
fonvard business losses under the Tax La,nvs. In the absence of avatlability of conr.incing
evidence as to availabiliq- of sufficient furure taxable income against rvhich such tax asset is
realised, the compan)' prudendl' decided to not to recognise any further asset on such
losses.

32. Capital Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (under litigation), not acknorvledged as

debt, include:

Particulars 31 Nlatch 2025 31 Nlarch 2024
Tax Demands in excess of
provisions

- Corporate Income Tax
10.72 10.95

Against customer claim 62.00*

x The Companv has lodged an zppe^l rvith the National Consumer Disputes Redressal
Commrssion (INCDRC) concerning the aforementioned matter, contesting the ruling of
the State Consumer Disputes Redressal Commission (SCDRC). As per court instructions,
the Compan)- has alreadt' deposited 500uo of the total claim amount under protest. The
outstanding sum is disclosed as a contingent liabilit)'in the preced.g table.

33. The Companv's priman'business segment is reflected based on principal busrness activities
carried on bv the Compan)' i.e. der-elopment of real estate proiects and all other related
actir-ittes, rvhich as per IND AS - 108 on "segment Reporting" as prescribed in the
Companies (Accounting standards) Rules, 2006 is considered to be the onlr- reportable
segment. The Companv is pnmarill- operating in India rvhich is considered as a single
geographical segment.

34. In the opinion of the Board of Directors current assets, loans and advances have a r-alue
on realization in the ordinan- course of business at least equal to the amount at which thev
are stated in the Balance Sheet and provisions for all knorvn liabilities har-e been made.

g*n,r



DOMUS REAL ESTATE PRIVATE LIMTTED
CIN: U00082DL2005PTC110528

Regd. Off,rce: 1E, Jhandes,alan Extn. Naaz Cinema Complex, New Delhi -1 10055
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31r 2025

35. The Companv has used a third parq' operated accounting sofnv are for maintaining its
books of account and that the audit trail fearure of the said software rvas enabled and
operated throughout the vear for all relevant transactions recorded in the software and the
comPanv Persen'ed the audit trail in full compliance rvith the requirements of section
128(5) of the Companies Act, 201,3, in respect of the frnancial vear ended Nlarch 31,2025.
However, in respect of the f,rnancial vears ended Nlarch 31,, 2024, Nlanagement is not in
possession of Sen'ice Organisation Controls reporr (SOC1 typ" 2 report) to determine
rvhether the requirements of above Rule has been met.

36. Details of dues to Nlicro and Small Enterpri.ses as per N{SNIED Act, 2006 to the extent of
information available rvith the Compan),

The above information regarding Nlicro, Small and Nledium Enterprises has been determined to
the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available rvith the
companv. No other transaction hare been entered rvith suppliers as defined under the Nlicro, Small
and Nledium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 other than disclosed abor.e. The same has been
relied upon bv the auditors.

,k\

.Q

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid ro an\'
supplier as at the end of each accoundngve^r 3.04 3.01

The amount of interest p^id bv the buver in terms of section 16, of the
NIicro Small and Nledium Entelprise Development Act, 2006 along rvith the
amounts of the pavment made to the supplier bevond the appointed dav
during each accounting vear

The amount of interest due and pavable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but bevond the appointed dar- during the
vear) but rvithout adding the interest specified under Nlicro Small and
i\Iedium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remai"irg unpaid at the end of each
accounting year

The amount of further interest remaining due and pavable even in the
succeeding \:ears, until such date rvhen the interest dues as above are acruallv
paid to the small entelprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expendirure under section 23 of the Nlicro Small and Nledium Enteqprise
Development Act, 2006

t{

"'{/\ir

Paticulars
As at As at

Match 31,
2025

Match 31,
2024



DOMUS REAL ESTATE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U00082DL2005P-[C1 $528

Regd. Office: 1tr Jhandervalan Extn. Naaz Cinema Complex, Nerv Delhi -110055
Notes to Financial Statements fot the year ended March 3lr 2025

37. Othet statutory inforrhation for the year ended March 3lr 2025 and March 31, Z0Z4

(i) The Compau' does not have anv benami properrl,, rvhere any proceeding has been iniriated
or pending against the Companv for holding an)' benami properfi under the Benami
Transactions (?rohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) The Compan)' do not have anv transactions rvith companies struck off under Section 248
of the Companies Act, 2013.

(rir) The Compan)- do not have anv charges or satisfaction rvhich is vet to be registered with
Registrar of Companies bevond the staruton period.

(n) The Company have not traded or invested in Crvpto Currency or \rirrual Currency during
the financtalveat.

(r) The Companv has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or
entiw(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermedian' shall:

(a) direcdv or indirecdv lend or invest in other persons or entities identif,red in any
manner rvhatsoever bv or on behalf of the Compan). Gltimate Beneficiaries); or

(b) provide an)' guarantee, securiw or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

("D The Company has not received anl, fund from anv person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (Funding Partr) rvith the understandrng (rvhether recorded in wriung or
otherwise) that the Compan)- shall:

(a) direcdv or indirecdr' lend or invest in other persons or enrities identified in anv
manner rvhatsoever bv or on behalf of the Funding Parfi (L'ltimate Beneficiaries); or

@) provide anv guarantee, securi6' or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vii) The Companv does not har.e anv such tansaction'uvhich is not recorded in the books of
account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the
Income-tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or sun'ev or anv other) relevant pror-isions of the
Income-tax Act, 1,961.

(trii) The Compan)' has not been declared rvilful defaulter bl- anr,bank or financial insritution
or Clor-ernment or an)' Government authorirl' or other lender, in accordance rvith the
guidelines on rvilful defaulters issued bv the Resen'e Bank of India.

(ix) The Compant' has complied rvith the number of layers prescribed under Clause (87) of
Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read rvith the Companies (Restncnon on number of
Lar,ers) Rules, 2017 from the date of therr rmplemenrarion.

d.
(



DOMUS REAL ESTATE PRIVATE LIMITED
C IN : U00082DL2005PT Cl 40528

Regd. Office: ltrJhandervalan Extn. Naaz Cinema Complex, New Delhi -110055
Notes to Financial Statements for the ye^t ended March 3tr2025

38. Figures of previous years har-e been regrouped/reclassif,red wherever considered necessar\:
to make them comparable rvith that of current \rear.

39. Figures har.e been rounded off to the nearest rupee in lakhs.

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Domus Real Estate Private Limited

W
Sandeep Kumar Gupta Sanieev Shekhar Sharma

DIN : 07090519 DIN :07090524
(Director) pirector)
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Place: Gurugram
Date: 23.04.2025
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